
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

DECEMBER 3, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the governing 
body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with these 
goals. 
 

Goals 

 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City 

government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic 

planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of 
the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

December 3, 2007 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Father William Sinatra – St. Alan’s 

Catholic Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employee’s Casual for a Cause Program, Carol 
Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director will present a check to Maureen 
Lobowski of Troy People Concerned .................................................................... 1 

b) Citizens Academy Class X – Mayor Schilling will present the Certificates of 
Completion to the Graduates ............................................................................... 1 

c) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling will present a Proclamation to 
Bud and Shirley Black recognizing the occasion of their 50

th
 Wedding 

Anniversary ........................................................................................................... 1 
d) 100 Best Fleets in North America (City of Troy’s Fleet Division Named #2) – 

Mayor Schilling will present the award to Tim Richnak, Sam Lamerato and 
Fleet Division ........................................................................................................ 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 

 

 -  -  

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 No Public Hearings 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 Proposed Council Appointment to the Cable Advisory Committee 1 

D-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File No: ZOTA 214) – Article X, Group Child 
Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 2 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 2 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning 
Commission b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities; Charter Revision Committee; Employee Retirement System Board of 
Trustees & Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; and Municipal Building 
Authority 2 

E-2 Bid Waiver – Contract Extension – Alarm Installation, Monitoring and Maintenance 4 

E-3 Sole Source – Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center 
and Troy Community Center 5 

E-4 Proposed Reconsideration of Resolution #2007-09-278 (Item F-3) – Bid Waiver – 
Replacement of Two Police Canines 5 

E-5 Contract Award:  Qualification Based Selection (QBS) – Integrated Financial 
System 7 

CONSENT AGENDA: 7 

F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 8 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 8 



 

 

 -  -  

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 8 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 8 

a) Bud and Shirley Black – 50
th

 Wedding Anniversary ............................................. 8 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 8 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Home Chore 
Lawn and Yard Services ....................................................................................... 8 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles .............................................................. 9 

F-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long 
Lake Road to Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #17 – Sidwell 
#88-20-11-226-036 – 19 John R Company 9 

F-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long 
Lake Road to Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #11 – Sidwell 
#88-20-11-226-007 – Wattles Square, Inc. 9 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long 
Lake Road to Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #12 – Sidwell 
#88-20-11-226-006 – Garrett Family Limited Partnership 10 

F-8 Private Agreement for 1-800-Mini-Storage – Project No. 07.927.3 10 

F-9 Application for New SDM License for Wal-Mart 11 

F-10 Application for Transfer of B-Hotel License to Hospitality Ventures Management, 
Inc. and RBHV Troy, LLC (Co-Licensees) 11 

F-11 Private Agreement for Rochester Professional Building – Project No. 06.935.3 12 

F-12 Request for Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Parcel to Tepel Land 
LLC, Section 26 – Sidwell #88-20-26-477-042 12 

F-13 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – 1660 East Square Lake Road – 
Sidwell #88-20-11-201-022 – Kensington Community Church 12 

F-14 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Deficit Elimination Plan 13 



 

 

 -  -  

F-15 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Big Beaver and Cunningham 13 

F-16 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Rochester Road and Woodside Bible 
Church 13 

F-17  Steamers Café Contract 14 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 14 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 14 

a) Rezoning Application – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy Development, North 
Side of Long Lake, East Side of Rochester Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 
(File Number Z-729) – December 17, 2007 ........................................................ 14 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 14 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 14 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 14 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 15 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 15 

REPORTS: 15 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 17, 2007 ................................... 15 
b) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – September 19, 2007 ........................ 15 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 10, 2007 ... 15 

d) Library Advisory Board/Final – October 11, 2007 ............................................... 15 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 16, 2007 ........................................... 15 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 23, 2007 ......................... 15 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 7, 2007 .............................. 15 

h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 12, 2007 .................................... 15 
i) Planning Commission/Draft – November 13, 2007 ............................................ 15 
j) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 14, 

2007 ................................................................................................................... 15 



 

 

 -  -  

J-2 Department Reports: 15 

a) Purchasing Department – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb 
Auctioneering Services – October 2007 ............................................................. 15 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 15 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Jim and Susan Werpetinski 
Regarding the Police Presence on Election Day and the Community 
Outreach Programs ............................................................................................ 15 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 15 

J-5  Calendar 15 

STUDY ITEMS: 15 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 15 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 15 

CLOSED SESSION: 16 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 16 

ADJOURNMENT 16 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 16 

Monday, December 17, 2007 .................................................................................. 16 

1. Seco Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham – Request for Industrial Development 
District (IDD) ....................................................................................................... 16 

2. Seco Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham – Issuance of an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) .............................................................................. 16 

3. Rezoning Application – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy Development, North 
Side of Long Lake, East Side of Rochester Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 
(File Number Z-729) ........................................................................................... 16 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 

Monday, December 17, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................... 16 
Monday, January 7, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................... 16 
Monday, January 28, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................. 16 
Monday, February 4, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................... 16 



 

 

 -  -  

Wednesday, February 13, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 16 
Monday, February 18, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................. 16 

Wednesday, February 20, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 16 
Monday, March 3, 2008 Regular City Council ....................................................... 16 

Monday, March 17, 2008 Regular City Council ..................................................... 16 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Father William Sinatra – St. Alan’s 

Catholic Church 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employee’s Casual for a Cause Program, Carol Anderson, 
Parks & Recreation Director will present a check to Maureen Lobowski of Troy People 
Concerned   

b) Citizens Academy Class X – Mayor Schilling will present the Certificates of Completion 
to the Graduates  

c) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling will present a Proclamation to Bud and 
Shirley Black recognizing the occasion of their 50

th
 Wedding Anniversary  

d) 100 Best Fleets in North America (City of Troy’s Fleet Division Named #2) – Mayor 
Schilling will present the award to Tim Richnak, Sam Lamerato and Fleet Division 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Proposed Council Appointment to the Cable Advisory Committee 

 
Pending Resolution 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
W. Kent Voigt Unexpired Term 02/28/09 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

D-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File No: ZOTA 214) – Article X, Group Child 

Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning 

Commission b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with 

Disabilities; Charter Revision Committee; Employee Retirement System Board of 

Trustees & Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; and Municipal Building 

Authority   

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 3 - 

for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceeds the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 

(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by  Mayor (9-Regular) –  3-Year Terms 

 

 Unexpired Term 12/31/08 

 

 Term Expires 12/31/10 

 

 Term Expires 12/31/10 

  

 Term Expires 12/31/10 

 
Yes: 
No: 

 

(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 11/01/09 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 4 - 

 
 Unexpired Term 11/01/09 

  
 Unexpired Term 11/01/09 

 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 

 
 Term Expires 11/01/10 

 
 Term Expires 11/01/10 

 

Charter Revision Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/09 

 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees &  

Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
Appointed by Council (Defined Benefit Retiree Rep) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/10 

 

Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-2 Bid Waiver – Contract Extension – Alarm Installation, Monitoring and Maintenance  

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On July 25, 1994, Troy City Council approved a five (5) year contract to provide 
alarm installation, monitoring, and maintenance with an option to renew for an additional two 
(2) year period to Vigilante Security, Inc. as the result of a 1994 RFP process (Resolution #94-
624), and extended yearly administratively under the same prices, terms and conditions; and   
 
WHEREAS, Vigilante Security, Inc. has offered to extend their contract under the same prices, 
terms, and conditions with the exception of the call-out hourly rate, whose increase was 
incorporated into the previous contract extension, and included any changes to alarm 
installations required;   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 5 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to 
provide Alarm Installation, Monitoring, and Maintenance with Vigilante Security, Inc. of Lathrup 
Village, MI, under the prices, terms, and conditions as outlined in Attachment I, with pricing 
reviewed annually and adjustments allowed in accordance with the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) for the Detroit-Ann Arbor area.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 Sole Source – Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center and 

Troy Community Center  

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The American Red Cross is the sole known provider of Red Cross training 
supplies in Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The American Red Cross has been providing training supplies for lifeguard and 
CPR programs and classes at the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center 
since 2005;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to 
purchase American Red Cross training supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center, Troy 
Community Center, and Troy Parks and Recreation staff from the sole known provider in 
Michigan, the American Red Cross at an estimated total cost of $28,000.00, expiring December 
31, 2008. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Proposed Reconsideration of Resolution #2007-09-278 (Item F-3) – Bid Waiver – 

Replacement of Two Police Canines  

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2007-09-278, Moved 
by Howrylak and Seconded by Lambert, as it appears below: 

 
WHEREAS, Two police canines are coming out of service due to age and health issues 
by December 2007;  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department has had a long and successful relationship 
with the Oakland Police Academy K9 Training Center, in which all dogs are given an 
extensive physical exam and guaranteed for placement;  
 
WHEREAS, The Academy ensures the canines will have the proper temperament, 
drives necessary for police work, appropriate sociability, and ability to be properly 
trained; and 
 
WHEREAS, One replacement dog will be pre-trained, the other “green” or non-trained, 
to be trained by an experienced handler in the Troy Police Department; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 
bidding procedures and a contract to purchase two police canines from Oakland Police 

Academy of Auburn Hills, MI, is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost of $15,500.00.  
 
Yes:     All-6 
No:     None 
Absent:  Fleming 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

Proposed Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution #2007-09-278 by Substitution 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2007-09-278, Bid Waiver – 

Replacement of Two Police Canines by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with 
the following: 
 

WHEREAS, Two police canines are coming out of service due to age and health issues 
by December 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department has had a long and successful relationship 
with the Oakland Police Academy K9 Training Center, and White Collar K9 who is the 
overseer of this K9 program;  
 
WHEREAS, The Academy and White Collar K9 ensure the canines will have the proper 
temperament, drives necessary for police work, appropriate sociability, and ability to be 
properly trained; and 
 
WHEREAS, One replacement dog will be pre-trained, the other “green” or non-trained, 
to be trained by an experienced handler in the Troy Police Department; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 

bidding procedures and APPROVES contracts to purchase two police canines from 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 7 - 

Oakland Police Academy of Auburn Hills, MI, and White Collar K9 at an estimated cost 
of $3,500.00 and $12,000.00 respectively.  

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-5 Contract Award:  Qualification Based Selection (QBS) – Integrated Financial 

System  

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase an Integrated 
Financial Software solution from New World Systems of Troy, MI, the firm with the highest 
score as a result of a qualification based selection process, at prices contained in the tabulation 

and proposal documents opened November 19, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting for an estimated total five-year cost of $462,495.00, with 
optional software/services contained in the Request for Proposal negotiated at the time the City 
is ready to implement those applications; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the necessary 
purchases of server hardware and third party software utilizing approved purchasing 
procedures, with Crystal Report Server software being bought directly from the manufacturer, 
Business Objects of San Jose, CA, all for an estimated total cost of $55,610.00; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That ongoing software maintenance/support WILL CONTINUE 

annually and BE ADJUSTED each year after 2013, based upon verifiable increases in labor by 
using the consumer price index inflation calculator or CPI computation for the published Urban 
– CPI for the Detroit/Ann Arbor area between the base year of 2013 and the subsequent year, 

whichever CPI computation is lower, and to BE CONTINUED in future years using the same 
method;  
  

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company’s submission 
of proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other 

specified requirements from which, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to 
execute the contract when in acceptable form. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 8 - 

Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of November 19, 

2007 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 

a) Bud and Shirley Black – 50
th

 Wedding Anniversary 

   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Home Chore Lawn and 

Yard Services    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide for seasonal 
requirements of lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 9 - 

one (1) additional year to the low total bidder, Zimmerman Lawn and Snow of Roseville, MI, at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 18, 2007, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of December 31, 
2008; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES contracts to purchase one (1) 2008 
Ford Escape Hybrid FWD from Signature Ford, L-M Jeep of Owosso, MI, and one (1) 2008 
Ford Taurus from Varsity Ford of Ann Arbor, MI, through the Macomb County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement at an estimated total cost of $23,235.00 and $18,411.00 respectively.   
 

F-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long 

Lake Road to Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #17 – Sidwell #88-

20-11-226-036 – 19 John R Company 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between 19 John R Company, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-11-
226-036, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $26,200.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long 

Lake Road to Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #11 – Sidwell #88-

20-11-226-007 – Wattles Square, Inc. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Wattles Square, Inc., owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-11-
226-007, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $20,150.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long 

Lake Road to Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #12 – Sidwell #88-

20-11-226-006 – Garrett Family Limited Partnership 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty of 
Public Purposes between Garrett Family Limited Partnership, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-11-226-006, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $20,050.00, plus closing 
costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 

F-8 Private Agreement for 1-800-Mini-Storage – Project No. 07.927.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and West Maple 
Ventures, LLC, for the installation of water main, concrete approach, underground detention 
system, and sanitary sewer lead connection on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 11 - 

F-9 Application for New SDM License for Wal-Mart 
 

(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Wal-Mart Stores East, 2001 W. Maple, Troy 48084, for a new SDM license with 2 direct 
connections; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Wal-Mart Stores East, 2001 W. Maple, Troy 48084, Oakland County, for a new SDM 

license with 2 direct connections, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 

document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Application for Transfer of B-Hotel License to Hospitality Ventures Management, 

Inc. and RBHV Troy, LLC (Co-Licensees) 
 

(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc. and RBHV Troy, LLC to transfer ownership of 2007 B-
Hotel licensed business with dance permit, official permit (food), outdoor service (1 area) 3 bars 
and 251 rooms, located at 850 Tower, from DJPONT/JPM Troy Leasing, LLC, Felcor/JPM Troy 
Hotel, LLC, and Promus Hotels, Inc.; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 12 - 

 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc. and RBHV Troy, LLC to transfer ownership of 2007 
B-Hotel licensed business with dance permit, official permit (food), outdoor service (1 area) 3 
bars and 251 rooms, located at 850 Tower, from DJPONT/JPM Troy Leasing, LLC, Felcor/JPM 

Troy Hotel, LLC, and Promus Hotels, Inc., and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-11 Private Agreement for Rochester Professional Building – Project No. 06.935.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Rochester 
Professional Building LLC, for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, 
sidewalks, paving and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-12 Request for Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Parcel to Tepel Land LLC, 

Section 26 – Sidwell #88-20-26-477-042 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty 
between the City of Troy, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-26-477-042, and Tepel 
Land, LLC, for the acquisition of City-owned property in the amount of $18,400.00, the 
appraised value, as outlined in the Agreement to Purchase; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the Agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-13 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – 1660 East Square Lake Road – 

Sidwell #88-20-11-201-022 – Kensington Community Church 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 13 - 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Kensington Community Church, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-11-201-022, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of parkland in the amount of 
$230,000.00; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-14 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Deficit Elimination Plan 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and ADOPTS the Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Course Deficit Elimination Plan presented to this meeting. 
 

F-15 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Big Beaver and Cunningham  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 
WHEREAS, Per the Traffic Signal Maintenance agreement for the signal at Big Beaver and 
Cunningham, Kmart Corp. paid traffic signal maintenance costs for the signal; 
 
WHEREAS, Kmart Corp. moved out of the City in 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, Cunningham is a City Road and Big Beaver is under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the cost 
agreement with the Road Commission for Oakland County and the City for the maintenance of 
the traffic signal at Big Beaver and Cunningham for sharing costs at 33-1/3% City and 66-2/3% 

Road Commission for Oakland County, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 

the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-16 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Rochester Road and Woodside Bible 

Church  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 14 - 

WHEREAS, The Troy City Council approved a traffic signal at the intersection of Rochester 
Road and Woodside Bible Church in March 2006, with cost of installation and maintenance to 
be paid by Woodside Bible Church; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Road Commission for Oakland County requests a signed Traffic Signal 
Maintenance Agreement;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Traffic 
Signal Maintenance Agreement between Woodside Bible Church, the Road Commission for 

Oakland County and the City of Troy and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 

the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-17  Steamers Café Contract 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 
WHEREAS, On December 19, 2005, Troy City Council awarded a two-year contract for the 
operation of the Library café by Zeyn Francis of Troy, Michigan expiring December 31, 2007, 
which may be extended under the same terms and conditions, if approved by City Council and 
agreed to by the Café operators (Resolution #2005-12-554a); and  
 
WHEREAS, Zeyn Francis has agreed to extend the monthly rent of $750.00 for a period of 
one-year under new terms and conditions to expire December 31, 2008; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a one-year 
contract for Library Café Services to Zeyn Francis of Troy, Michigan based upon new terms 

and conditions listed in the amended Agreement, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk 

to execute the agreement once in acceptable form, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) Rezoning Application – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy Development, North Side of Long 
Lake, East Side of Rochester Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 (File Number Z-729) – 
December 17, 2007       

    

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 15 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced     
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 17, 2007  

b) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – September 19, 2007 

c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 10, 2007  

d) Library Advisory Board/Final – October 11, 2007  

e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 16, 2007 

f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 23, 2007 

g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 7, 2007 

h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 12, 2007  

i) Planning Commission/Draft – November 13, 2007  

j) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 14, 2007 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Purchasing Department – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb Auctioneering 
Services – October 2007 

 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Jim and Susan Werpetinski Regarding the 
Police Presence on Election Day and the Community Outreach Programs         

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

J-5  Calendar 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 

during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 3, 2007 

 

- 16 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, December 17, 2007 
1. Seco Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham – Request for Industrial Development District 

(IDD)  
2. Seco Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham – Issuance of an Industrial Facilities 

Exemption Certificate (IFEC)  
3. Rezoning Application – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy Development, North Side of 

Long Lake, East Side of Rochester Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 (File Number 
Z-729) 
 

 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, December 17, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, January 7, 2008 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, January 28, 2008 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, February 4, 2008 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Wednesday, February 13, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 

Monday, February 18, 2008 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Wednesday, February 20, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 

Monday, March 3, 2008 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, March 17, 2008 ........................................................... Regular City Council 

 



1

Laura D Campbell

From: Julie Hamilton
Sent: Friday, November 16, 2007 10:05 AM
To: Laura D Campbell
Cc: Barbara A Pallotta; Carol K Anderson; Cynthia A Stewart
Subject: Casual for Cause Check Presentation

Laura,  
 
Please add the Troy People Concerned to the presentations for December 3rds council meeting.   
 
Carol,  
 
Maureen Lobowski will be in attendance on the 3rd to accept the check for the TPC.  This is for October’s donations.  I 
will forward the check to you today.   
 
 
Julie  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



1

Laura D Campbell

From: Cynthia A Stewart
Sent: Monday, November 26, 2007 6:05 PM
To: agenda
Cc: Mary F Redden; Beth L Tashnick
Subject: Dec. 3rd Council Meeting

Presentations 
Citizens Academy Class X – Mayor will present the certificates of completion to the graduates 
 
Bud & Shirley Black – longtime Troy residents – Proclamation for their 50th Wedding Anniversary 
 
100 Best Fleets in North America – City of Troy’s Fleet Division Named #2 

100 Best Fleets in 
North Ameri...

Council Resolution - 
Black 50t...

  
 

Cindy Stewart 

 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



PROCLAMATION 
IN RECOGNITION OF BUD AND SHIRLEY BLACK 

ON THE OCCASION OF THEIR 50TH ANNIVERSARY 
 
WHEREAS, Bud and Shirley Black were united in marriage on November 30, 1957 are now celebrating their 
50th Wedding Anniversary surrounded by family and friends; and   
 
WHEREAS, This marriage has been blessed with two daughters and two sons: Lisa, Julie, Brian, and Kevin 
who received from their parents the kind of loving and happy life that develops good citizens and wonderful, 
hard-working adults; and 
 
WHEREAS, Daughter Lisa and son-in-law George reside in Northville with their two children Nicholas and 
Sophia; daughter Julie and son-in-law Mike reside in Oklahoma with their two children Austin and Ashton; son 
Brian and daughter-in-law Luann reside in New Baltimore with their son Justin; and son Kevin and daughter-in-
law Pam reside in Oxford with their two children Kyler and Krysta; and 
 
WHEREAS, After many years of working as a Truck Engineer, Bud retired from Ford.  He is a member of the 
Troy Senior Citizens Advisory Committee.  Shirley is a psychotherapist, ran her own private practice office and 
recently retired from the Rochester Counseling Association Division of Oakland County.  Shirley volunteers at 
Beaumont Troy and both Bud and Shirley love to travel celebrating their 50th anniversary in Greece and play 
golf.  They are both Troy Citizens Academy Graduates; and  
 
WHEREAS, In addition to providing for their family a legacy of wit, wisdom, and love throughout the years, 
Bud and Shirley have been loyal Troy residents since 1986; and   
 
WHEREAS, Bud and Shirley Black have earned the respect of all with whom they have come into contact, 
and the love and affection of their children, grandchildren and a host of wonderful friends; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Bud and Shirley Black are worthy of this expression of our 
sincere congratulations on this happy occasion of their 50th wedding anniversary; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council and all of Troy’s residents extend best wishes to 
Bud and Shirley Black for many more years of good health and happiness together.  
 
Presented this 3rd day of December 2007. 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01c



100 Best Fleets in North America 
 

At a fleet professional’s conference in Norfolk, Virginia, the City of Troy’s Fleet Division was 
named #2 in the 100 Best Fleets in North America this year.  This award is sponsored by 
Government Fleet Magazine, Chrysler Corporation, CCG Systems, Zero Air Pollution Vehicles 
and the 100 Best Fleets in North America.  The division first participated in this program in 
2004, when they were named to the top 100.  In 2005 they were named #10.  After 
implementing new technologies and accountability practices, the city’s fleet moved to #3 in 
2006.  Out of the over 38,000 public fleet departments in America, 1250 applications were sent 
out to fleets identified as being superior by their peers, other national recognitions, site visits 
by the judges, and best fleet practices.  The judges were a panel of former winners and fleet 
professional experts.   
 
There are many areas where the Fleet Division excels.  They are an ASE Blue Seal of Excellence 
Shop, with 85% of their technicians certified.  The department has a combined total of 253.5 
years of service to the City and holds a total of 113 certifications.  They have participated in the 
Troy Daze parade.  A Girl Scout troop from Troy visited the facility and was given a 
demonstration on basic car services (tire changing, checking oil, checking tire pressure, etc.).  
The department also participated in the Tons of Trucks program sponsored by the City of Troy 
Parks and Recreation Department.   
 
Some of the criteria taken into account for this award are Accountability, Use of Technology & 
Information, Evidence of High Trust Culture, Performance Recognition, Collaboration, 
Creativity, Celebration, Doing It Right the First Time, Quick/Efficient Turnaround, Competitive 
Pricing, Staff Development and Resources Stewardship.  Troy is recognized nationally for their 
ratio of technicians to vehicles serviced, all this with minimal hours of overtime worked during 
the year, including during emergency situations as well.     
 
Currently the city’s fleet division in‐sources work from seven outside communities.  They now 
install all police and fire department emergency radio equipment, as well as perform new 
vehicle police car builds for the Police Department.  Their in‐sourcing revenue totals could be 
up to $500,000 in contributions to the division’s revenue fund.   
 
The goal of the Fleet Division is to be 100% PM compliant.  The service staff works hard to meet 
this goal and to keep 98% of the city fleet on the road and out of the shop.  It is also a goal to 
have 100% of fire department apparatus ready for service 365 days a year. 
 
Troy’s Fleet Division was able to achieve this award through the dedication of its service staff 
and technicians, the aggressive fleet replacement policy and with the backing of city 
management and council. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01d



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 3, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  

campbellld
Text Box
B-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 3, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

C-1 No Public Hearings  

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 3, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
D-1 Proposed Council Appointment to the Cable Advisory Committee 
 
Pending Resolution 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
W. Kent Voigt Unexpired Term 02/28/09 

 
Yes: 
No: 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



 

 
 
November 28, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Group Child Care Homes in R-1A through R-1E Zoned Property. 
    ZOTA 214 
 
 
Background:   
 
 On March 27, 2006, City Council recommended that group child care homes be permitted by right 

subject to special conditions. Furthermore, City Council directed City Administration to prepare 
draft ordinance language for group child care homes in the R-1A through R-1E districts that 
incorporates City Council, City staff and group child care home comments. 
 

 On April 24, 2006, City staff conducted a meeting with group and family child care home 
providers. The purpose of the meeting was to get input from the child care providers in the 
drafting of an ordinance that will permit group child care homes in the R-1A through R-1E districts 
within the City of Troy. On May 1, 2006, City staff conducted a meeting with neighbors of family 
and group child care homes to obtain their input. 

 
 On July 10, 2006, City Council postponed the item until the Regular City Council Meeting 

scheduled for Monday, September 11, 2006, for the purpose of addressing concerns raised by 
City Council. 

 

 On September 11, 2006, City Council passed a resolution to postpone this item until the first 
meeting in December 2007 or until the State of Michigan notifies us that the conflict in the State 
regulations has been resolved, whichever comes first. 

 
 At this time the only new documentation from the State that we have received on the matter is the 

enclosed summary of the requirements.  This summary outlines the requirements of both the 
Licensing Rules and Building Codes that the facilities are required to comply with. 

 
 There have been numerous meetings at the State level to try to resolve this matter.  However, no 

revisions have been made to any statutes or rules to change the status of the matter. 
 

 Should we receive any update to this information we will forward it for Council’s consideration. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-02





























      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 3, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: 
Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Charter Revision 
Committee; Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & 
Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; and Municipal Building 
Authority   

campbellld
Text Box
E-01



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
November 13, 2007 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   
SUBJECT: Bid Waiver - Contract Extension – Alarm Installation, Monitoring and Maintenance 
 
Background 
• On July 25, 1994 (Resolution 94-624) Troy City Council approved a five-year contract with an option 

to renew for two additional years for alarm installation, monitoring and maintenance in various City 
buildings with Vigilante Security, Inc.  

• The contract has been administratively extended on a yearly basis under the same prices, terms and 
conditions with the exception of an increase in the charge for call-outs, accepted during the last 
contract extension, in accordance with the CPI Inflation Calculator. 

• Vigilante has again expressed an interest in extending the contract, including all new facilities added 
during the last contract extension, as well as any future additions.   

• Vigilante Security, Inc. has provided consistent acceptable service levels, and due to security issues, it 
is important to have continuity of access to City buildings and operations.  

• Once alarms are installed, the main contract cost is monitoring.  If a new provider were sought, all the 
buildings would be required to be upgraded to that provider’s equipment and subject to 2008 
monitoring costs.  
 

Financial Considerations 
• Funds are available in the departmental security operating accounts.   

 
Legal Considerations 
• Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids. 
 
Policy Considerations 
• By retaining the current contractor the City will minimize the cost and increase the effectiveness of City 

operations.  (Goals II) 
 
Options 
• City management recommends extending the contract for alarm installation, monitoring, and 

maintenance with Vigilante Security, Inc. of Lathrup Village, MI under the same terms and conditions 
as the original contract approved in 1994.  Monitoring prices will remain at 1994 RFP prices with the 
exception of the hourly call-out prices which were increased to $61.65 per hour in the 2006 contract 
extension.  Staff will review pricing annually and adjustments may be allowed not-to-exceed the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the Detroit-Ann Arbor area.   

 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business –  Waiver  Vigilante Security 11.07.doc 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-02



Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENT I 
VIGILANTE ALARMS 
 
Department Alarm Type Monitoring Monthly 

Cost 
Community Center Burglar / Fire  $80.00 ($50 + $30) 
Nature Center Burglar / Fire  $60.00 ($30 + $30) 
 
P&R – Aquatic Center Fire $27.55 
P&R – Sylvan Glen Pro 
Shop 

Burglar  $30.00 

P&R – Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Course 

Burglar / Fire $92.50 

Troy Library Burglar / Fire 
Alarmnet  

$119.50 
($99+$15+$5.50) 

Museum Site Burglar / Fire $77.00 
Radio Building Waterflow & Low 

Temperature, Door 
Entry, Smoke Detector 

$29.00 

Fire Stations #1,2,3,4,5 Waterflow & Low 
Temperature 

$145.00 

Fire Station #6 Waterflow & Low 
Temperature 

$29.00 

Police / Fire Training 
Center  

Fire Alarm / Waterflow $34.50 

Engineering Field Office 
– 
 

Burglar $30.00 

DPW Yard 
 

Waterflow  
 

$29.00 
 

 Callouts – All locations $61.65/hour 
 
Monthly Cost Discounted 5% for all locations included on the Master Bill 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business – Waiver Vigilante Security Attachment 11.07.doc 
 







 

 
November 15, 2007 

 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Sole Source - Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic 

Center and Troy Community Center 
 
Background 
 American Red Cross acts as a resource for all training supplies needed for staff and classes to the 

outside public. 
 No actual service is required from the Red Cross as our staff teaches the classes and programs 

for our facilities. 
 American Red Cross is the only agency that offers American Red Cross training supplies such as 

books, certifications, and training packets. 
 These supplies are used for training of Community Center, Troy Family Aquatic Center, and Parks 

and Recreation staff as well as American Red Cross programs offered to the public. 
 American Red Cross has been the sole provider for the City for the last three years. 
 The American Red Cross Lifeguarding and Youth Swim Lesson Programs are used at the City’s 

aquatic facilities. 
 

Financial Considerations 
 Funding for the supplies is available in the Parks and Recreation, Aquatic Center, and Community 

Center operating budgets. 
 

Legal Considerations 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 

Policy Considerations 
 American Red Cross updates their programs to maintain industry safety standards. (Goal I) 
 The use of American Red Cross for training supplies allows program costs to remain low.(Goal II) 

 

Options 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend approval for the 

continued purchase of supplies from the American Red Cross, the sole provider of American Red 
Cross Lifeguard and CPR training supplies for Parks and Recreation programs and classes for the 
Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center from January 1, 2008 to  
December 31, 2008 at an estimated cost of $28,000.00. 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business-Sole Source – AmericanRedCross 11.07.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



 

 
 
November 19, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Director of Purchasing 

Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
     
SUBJECT: Correct Resolution #2007-09-278, Item F3  

Bid Waiver – Replacement of Two Police Canines  
 

Background 
 
 This item was previously presented and approved by Troy City Council on September 17, 2007.  

City Council Resolution #2007-09-278, Item F3.  Since then it has been discovered that payments 
need to be made to both Oakland Police Academy and White Collar K9.  

 White Collar K9 was erroneously omitted from the original memo and should be paid directly for 
the dogs, as they are the overseers of the K9 program. 

 One non-trained “green” dog has been received and is being trained by experienced handler 
Officer Mark Cole. 

 The City still expects to receive the second replacement fully-trained dog sometime in the spring 
of 2008, and anticipates Officer Cole’s “green” dog to be in service by January 2008. 

 

Financial Considerations 

 
 There are no changes to the original cost of this program. 
 

Options 
 
 City management is requesting a waiver of the formal bid process and contracts approved with 

the Oakland Police Academy and White Collar K9 for the purchase of two Police canines (12 to 
24 months of age) at an estimated cost of $3,500.00 and $12,000.00 respectively, to replace 
canines that have been retired due to age and health issues  

 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business-Waiver Canines -corrected11.07.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04





Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
September 10, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Charles T. Craft, Police Chief 
     
 
SUBJECT:   Bid Waiver – Replacement of Two Police Canines 
 
Background 
 

• The Troy Police Department K9 Unit is working toward a smooth transition with the 
replacement of two canines that are coming out of service due to age and health issues.   
One dog has recently been retired, and the other will be retired in December 2007.   

• The Troy Police Department has a long and successful relationship with the Oakland Police 
Academy K9 Training Center and has the opportunity to have first selection of available dogs.    

• All Academy dogs are physically inspected and guaranteed.  We have purchased our last 
three canines from the Academy with very good success.   

• Based on our past experience with the Oakland K9 Academy, we expect that the canines will 
have the proper temperament, the drives necessary for police work, appropriate sociability and 
ability to be properly trained.   

• Dogs are bred in Europe for police and military work.  The Oakland K9 Academy has trained 
nearly 80 dog teams with very good results.  

• One replacement dog will be pre-trained in 15-20 different explosive odors.  The second dog 
will be “green” or non-trained, but will receive training from Officer Mark Cole (experienced 
handler) during available patrol time, weekly training days and his free time at home. 

•  We expect both dogs to be in service by December 2007.   
 
Financial Considerations 
 

• Funds are available in the Drug Forfeiture Account #401305.7978.065. 
 

• The cost for a Patrol/Explosives Dog (Tracking/Explosives) is $10,000.00, which includes a 
pre-trained dog and all of the equipment needed for the K9 team.   This price includes 200 
hours of subsequent training, after which the K9 team will be certified by MCOLES and 
NAPCH (National Association of Professional Canine Handlers).    

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
September 10, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – Replacement of Two Police Canines 
 
 
Financial Considerations – continued 
 

• The cost of a “Green” dog is $5,500.00.   This purchase will be arranged for us by the 
Academy through their importer.  This will result in a $4,500.00 savings in the purchase/tuition 
price, and also 200 hours of additional payroll training time.     

 
• Using this local vendor results in further savings, as there will be no travel, per diem or hotel 

expenses for canine purchase or subsequent training.   
 
Legal Considerations 
 

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item.   
 
Policy Considerations 
 

• Enhance the livability and safety of the community (Goal I).   
 
Options 
 

• City management is requesting a waiver of the formal bid process and a contract approved 
with Oakland Police Academy for the purchase of two police canines (16 to 24 months of age) 
at an estimated cost of $15,500.00, to replace canines to be retired due to age and health 
issues. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business – Waiver Canines 09.07.doc 



 

Page 1 of 4 

 
 

November 28, 2007 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Gertrude Paraskevin, IT Director 
 
SUBJECT: Contract Award:  Qualification Based Selection (QBS) – Integrated Financial System  
 
Background 
 
 The City currently utilizes the JD Edwards Financial System that was implemented in 1997 on the 

AS/400 platform.  At that time the AS/400 was chosen due to the fact that some of the modules 
the City wanted to purchase were not available on the preferred client/server platform.  The 
intention was to upgrade the software and migrate to the client/server platform once all the 
modules were available.   

 JD Edwards offered an upgraded product that was investigated in 2000.  Although the software for 
the core modules in use were covered under a maintenance agreement, it was still necessary to 
purchase consulting services for project management, implementation, conversion, technical 
support, and training.  At that time the cost for these services, not including the hardware that 
would be required, was approximately $435,000.  It was determined that the products were so 
different, the cost so great that it was similar to purchasing and implementing a whole new 
system.  So the decision was made to delay any migration and take time to investigate what was 
available in the market in addition to the JD Edwards product, then budget the necessary funds.   

 In 2003 JD Edwards was purchased by PeopleSoft.  In December of 2004 PeopleSoft was 
purchased by Oracle.  The City had become aware of these likely mergers, so administration also 
decided to wait and see what the final outcome would be.  Since the City had standardized on 
Microsoft and specifically Microsoft SQL Server for database applications, it was determined that 
upgrading to the JD Edwards, now Oracle, integrated financial package was not in the best 
interests of the City, as it was very likely Oracle would eventually migrate clients to their Oracle 
database product.  Another reason to take at look at the market. 

 Although JD Edwards has served to improve many financial processes in the City, changes in 
technology have now rendered both the original software and hardware obsolete.  In addition, 
increased demands for more automation, faster easier access to data, increased disk storage 
requirements, and better overall performance, require that both the hardware and software be 
replaced.    

 In May of 2007, a formalized search for software was initiated and as a result of the Qualifications 
Based Selection process a vendor/product was selected.  The attached executive summary 
outlines the process in detail.   

 The selection process was qualifications based and incorporated information from a variety of 
other Michigan communities including a survey of financial software in use, and recent bid results. 
Some of the minimum requirements for vendor selection included: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



November  28, 2007 
 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Contract Award:  Qualification Based Selection (QBS) – Integrated Financial System 
 

Page 2 of 4 

o A fully integrated system not requiring a great deal of third party software or 
implementation 

o A solid vendor presence in Michigan 
o Production software that utilizes current technology with proven installations. 

 Some of the features in the recommended system include: 
o A completely Web based user interface 
o Improved reporting allowing use of industry standard reporting tools such as Crystal 

Reports 
o On-line queries integrated with Microsoft Office for easy download of data into Word 

and Excel putting more power in the users hands 
o The ability to apply workflow to a variety of processes 
o Improved tools for integration and interoperability with other systems 
o Improved security 
o A company committed exclusively to the Public Sector. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds are budgeted and available in the operating capital accounts of the Information Technology 

Fund for computer equipment, software and consulting.   
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 A Qualifications Based Selection Process was utilized to select the most appropriate product 

based on the City’s needs and technology standards.  Similar processes have been used by 
Engineering and for the Transit Center where qualifications are the first priority.   

 The award recommendation is based on the best-qualified vendor and software as a result of a 
QBS process. 

 The contract award is contingent on the recommended vendor’s submission of proper contract 
and supplemental documents, including insurance certificates, and all other specified 
requirements. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Upgrading the financial software expands the electronic function and allows for more efficient use 

of time by Finance staff and within the departments.  Manual processes that weren’t addressed by 
the existing system will be converted to electronic functions, for example time card entry, budget 
creation, and bank reconciliation.   In addition, information inquiries previously directed to Finance 
or Information Technology staff could now be done by the end users utilizing on-line query tools.  
(Goal II) 

 Enhance the flow of communication internally by providing easier and expanded access to 
financial information to City employees. (Goal IV) 

 
Options 
 



November  28, 2007 
 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Contract Award:  Qualification Based Selection (QBS) – Integrated Financial System 
 

Page 3 of 4 

 City management is requesting authorization to purchase the Integrated Financial Software from 
the highest rated firm as a result of a qualifications based selection process, New World Systems 
of Troy, Michigan for an estimated total five-year cost of $462,495.00, at prices as contained in the 
tabulation and proposal documents opened November 19, 2007.   

 Optional software/services contained in the Request for Proposal may be negotiated at the time 
the City is ready to implement those applications.  Ongoing software maintenance/support will 
continue annually and be adjusted each year after 2013, based upon verifiable increases in labor 
by using the consumer price index inflation calculator or CPI computation for the published Urban-
CPI for the Detroit / Ann Arbor area between the base year of 2013 and the subsequent year, 
whichever CPI computation is lower, and be continued in future years using the same method.  

 In addition, City management is requesting authorization to purchase necessary server hardware 
and third party software utilizing approved purchasing procedures, with Crystal Report Server 
licenses being purchased directly from the manufacturer, Business Objects, in order to expand our 
current number of concurrent licenses for an estimated total cost of $55,610.00.  Project costs are 
detailed in Appendix A. 



 

Page 4 of 4 

APPENDIX A 
 

Project Costs 
 

Application Software 
 
 

New World Systems Cost
Software $0
Escrow   3,000
Training 90,000

Implementation 58,000
Conversion 30,000
Interfaces 45,000

3rd Party Costs – 
Crystal Reports 495

Mtnce/Support (5 yrs) 236,000
ESTIMATED TOTAL $462,495

Other Services $150/hour
Ongoing Support 
after Year 5 w/CPI 

escalators 
$60,400/year

Base year 2013 times the CPI factor for 
the Detroit / Ann Arbor Area each year 
thereafter 

 
 
 

Server Hardware and Third Party Software 
 
 

Product Vendor Cost 
HP Proliant Servers 

 
Hewlett Packard 

(REMC) 
$29,200 

Microsoft Windows 
2003 

EDS                
(State Contract) 

1,960 

MS SQL Server 2005 EDS                 
(State Contract) 

3,900 

SQL Backup Agent Hewlett Packard 
(REMC) 

1,300 

Crystal Reports Writer EDS                 
(State Contract) 

5,000 

Crystal Report Server Business Objects 
(direct from mfr) 

$14,250 

TOTAL $55,610 
 
 

G:/Financial System Software/QBS – RFP-COAT 07-41 Financial Systems CouncilMemo.doc 



 

 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Financial System Software 
 
STATISTICS: 

 
 Developed minimum criteria checklist  

 
 Performed local area site visits.   

 
 Three (3) firms met the pass/fail criteria (Phase 1) and provided on-site demonstrations 

 
 Based on the result of the demonstrations, two (2) firms moved on to Phase 3 and Phase 4 

 
 New World Systems received the highest score as a result of a qualifications based 

selection process  
 
The following two firms received the indicated final scores as a result of the 
demonstration, technical review and pricing selection criteria. 
   
Firm SCORE 
New World Systems  79 
Tyler Technologies  71 
  

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – FIRMS ELIMINATED FROM FURTHER CONSIDERATION  
(AFTER COMPLETION OF PHASE 2) 
 

• Sungard Bi-Tech 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring Including Demonstration, Technical Review and Price 
Scoring 

 Evaluation Process 
 Original Tabulation 



 

 

WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING 
Financial System Software 

 
Final Score Calculation: 

 
10% x Technical Review Score 
30% x Cost Score                     
60% x Demonstration Score 

100%              = Final Weighted Score 
 

In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted 
into a score with the base of 100.  NOTE:  For the demonstration, technical review and pricing phases, 
vendors are listed in the order they conducted their demonstrations.  For final scores the vendors are 
listed in order of rating from highest to lowest. 

 

Weighted Average Score for the Demonstrations: 60% 
Score:  Average Final Weighted Score (x .60) 
Vendors:    
Tyler Technologies  81 81 x .60 = 49 
New World Systems 72 72 x .60 = 43 
Sungard Bi-Tech 47 47 x .60 = 28 
Based on the demonstration score, only the top two firms advanced to Phase 3 and Phase 4.  
   
Weighted Average Score for Technical Review:  10% 
Score: Average Final Weighted Score (x .10) 
Vendors:   
Tyler Technologies 81 81 x .10 = 8 
New World Systems 61 61 x .10 = 6 
 
Weighted Average Score for Cost: 30%   
RATERS Weighted Criteria – Difference in Costs 

 (low price/proposed price) x available points 
Final Weighted 
Score  
(x .30) 

Vendors:   
Tyler Technologies  ($462,495.00/$968,412.00) x 100    =  48     48 x .30 = 14   
New World Systems  ($462,495.00/$462,495.00) x 100    = 100 100 x .30 = 30 
 
FINAL SCORE:  
VENDORS:  New World Systems Tyler Technologies Sungard Bi-Tech 

Demonstration Score 43 49 28 
Technical Review Score 6 8 N/A 
Cost Score 30 14 N/A 

FINAL SCORE 79 71 28 

**HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
G:/ Financial System Software / Best Value SR8 – Financial System Software – WeightedRatingSummary 12.07.doc 



 

 

  
SELECTION PROCESS 

CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The City Committee will follow a qualifications based selection process.  The City of Troy reserves 
the right to award this project to the company considered the most qualified based upon a 
combination of factors including but not limited to the following: 
 

A. Developed minimum criteria checklist 
B. Attended National GFOA Vendor Exhibition 
C. Established a selection time frame 
D. Compiled a vendor list 
E. Performed local area site visits 
F. Established a shortlist 
G. Prepared demonstration scripts 
H. Evaluated demonstrations of short-listed vendors 
I. Ranked the vendors 
J. Conducted a technical review 
K. Solicited request for proposals from the highest ranked firms (up to three) 
L. Site visit for the highest rated firm to a City of comparable size and operation to that of Troy 
M. Award recommendation to City Council   
N. Post selection communication 

 
Phase 1:  Minimum Qualifications Evaluation – Pass / Fail 

  Firms will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second phase of 
the process.   

 
Phase 2:  Evaluation of Demonstrations - 60% 
 The City will invite the top three (3) firms to participate in a demonstration.  Each City 

Committee Member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the demos; 
each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee 
Members will be averaged into one score for each firm for this phase of the process.  
Those companies performing a demonstration may be supplied further instructions and 
requests prior to the date of the live demonstration.   

 
Phase 3:  Technical Review – 10% 
 The City of Troy IT department will conduct a scripted technical review.  The department 

will collectively evaluate this portion of the process using a single weighted score sheet for 
each firm.  

 
 
Phase 4: Relevance of Money – 30%  

Weighted Criteria – Ratio of Costs 
 
 Formula:  (low price/proposed price) x available points (100pts) 
 
The firm with the highest final weighted score will be recommended to the Troy City Council for 
Award.   

 
  60% Demonstration Score (100 point base)  
                10% Technical Review 
  30% Relevance of Money 

 
100% Final Weighted Score       

 
NOTE:  The order under Criteria for Selection may change or be deleted at the City’s option. 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 07-41
Opening Date -- 11/19/07 TABULATION Pg 1 of 3
Date Prepared -- 11/19/2007 FINANCIAL SYSTEM SOFTWARE

FIRM NAME: New World Systems Tyler Technologies, Inc.

PROPOSAL:  PROVIDE AN INTEGRATED FINANCIAL SYSTEM SOFTWARE SOLUTION
COST PROPOSAL:  - Application Software  - Application Software

Module / Conversion / Implementation / Training / User License Fees
G/L 92,000.00$                           104,800.00$                         
Budget -$                                     4,000.00$                            
Purchase Orders -$                                     66,475.00$                          
Contract Mgt -$                                     15,275.00$                          
A/P -$                                     10,000.00$                          
H/R 70,500.00$                           23,475.00$                          
Payroll -$                                     43,725.00$                          
A/R -$                                     42,800.00$                          
Cash Receipting -$                                     -$                                     
Cash Mgt -$                                     23,125.00$                          
Retirement tracking -$                                     7,300.00$                            
Benefit Tracking -$                                     -$                                     
Applicant Tracking -$                                     7,875.00$                            
Employee Self Service 15,500.00$                           -$                                     
Applicant Self Service -$                                     -$                                     
Work Flow -$                                     9,900.00$                            
Fixed Assets -$                                     40,850.00$                          

Subtotal: 178,000.00$                         399,600.00$                         

SUPPORT/MAINTENANCE FEES (5 YRS)       1st to 5th Year       1st to 5th Year
G/L 110,880.00$                         82,220.00$                          
Budget -$                                     -$                                     
Purchase Orders -$                                     41,932.00$                          
Contract Mgt -$                                     10,689.00$                          
A/P -$                                     -$                                     
H/R 83,160.00$                           8,595.00$                            
Payroll -$                                     17,566.00$                          
A/R -$                                     22,423.00$                          
Cash Receipting -$                                     -$                                     
Cash Mgt -$                                     17,266.00$                          
Retirement tracking -$                                     4,933.00$                            
Benefit Tracking -$                                     -$                                     
Applicant Tracking -$                                     4,111.00$                            
Employee Self Service 36,960.00$                           -$                                     
Applicant Self Service -$                                     -$                                     
Work Flow -$                                     -$                                     
Fixed Assets -$                                     35,877.00$                          

Subtotal: 231,000.00$                         245,612.00$                         

OTHER SERVICES: Source Code Escrow Implementation Costs:
3,000.00$                             67,200.00$                          

Source Code Annual Mtnce  (5 YRS) 5,000.00$                             3,750.00$                            
Subtotal: 8,000.00$                             70,950.00$                          



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 07-41
Opening Date -- 11/19/07 TABULATION Pg 2 of 3
Date Prepared -- 11/19/07 FINANCIAL SYSTEM SOFTWARE

FIRM NAME: New World Systems Tyler Technologies, Inc.

PROPOSAL:  PROVIDE AN INTEGRATED FINANCIAL SYSTEM SOFTWARE SOLUTION

OTHER SOFTWARE:
Client: Required Quantity     X N/A Unlimited

Unit Purchase or License Price 31,000.00$                          
Extended Initial Purchase 31,000.00$                          
Annual On-Going Software(x5yr) 31,000.00$                          

Server: Required Quantity     X N/A Blank
Unit Purchase or License Price Blank
Extended Initial Purchase Blank
Annual On-Going Software(x5yr) Blank

Report: Required Quantity     X 1 Site
Unit Purchase or License Price 495.00$                               24,000.00$                         
Extended Initial Purchase 495.00$                                18,000.00$                          
Annual On-Going Software(x5yr) 0 30,000.00$                         

Forms: Required Quantity     X Blank Site
Unit Purchase or License Price -$                                    
Extended Initial Purchase 30,750.00$                          
Annual On-Going Software(x5yr) 12,500.00$                         

Relational: Required Quantity     X N/A Separate
Unit Purchase or License Price
Extended Initial Purchase  
Annual On-Going Software(x5yr)  

Other: Required Quantity     X Blank Blank
Unit Purchase or License Price
Extended Initial Purchase  
Annual On-Going Software(x5yr)  

Subtotal: 495.00$                               153,250.00$                        

INTERFACES:
 Cash Receipting

Implementation Cost 32,000.00$                          42,750.00$                         
Ongoing Support/Maint. (5 yrs) Blank 51,300.00$                         

General Ledger
Implementation Cost 6,000.00$                             Include w/GL Import
Ongoing Support/Maint. (5 yrs) Blank Include w/GL Import

Payroll 
Implementation Cost 7,000.00$                            2,250.00$                           
Ongoing Support/Maint. (5 yrs) Blank 2,700.00$                           

Subtotal: 45,000.00$                          99,000.00$                         

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 462,495.00$                    968,412.00$                   

FUTURE OPTIONS
 PRICING /  Schedule of Values

Application Software License Fees
Utility Billing 221,000.00$                         99,650.00$                          
Business/Dog Licensing 71,000.00$                           71,025.00$                          

Support/Maintenance Fees (5 YRS) 1st to 5th Year 1st to 5th Year
Utility Billing 115,176.00$                         40,511.00$                          
Business/Dog Licensing 38,392.00$                           31,018.00$                          

Subtotal: 445,568.00$                        242,204.00$                        



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 07-41
Opening Date -- 11/19/07 TABULATION Pg 3 of 3
Date Prepared -- 11/19/07 FINANCIAL SYSTEM SOFTWARE

FIRM NAME: New World Systems Tyler Technologies

SCHEDULE OF VALUES:
SERVICES: UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

Project Managers $150/hour N/C - Project 
Consultants $150/hour $1,250/Day
CNC Services $150/hour $1,250/Day
Training Support Services $150/hour $1,100/Day
Developers $150/hour $1,025/Day

REMIBURSEABLES:
Travel -$                                          $1,100 / 3-days(estd-actual reimb)
Other Blank

POTENTIAL ADDITIONAL SERVICES: $150/hour - No add'l Business Process Improvement &
services were listed Desk Procd & Bus Solution Design

($ to be determined)

NUMBER OF YEARS TO HOLD 
UNIT PRICES FOR SERVICES: 1 2

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Y or N Y Y

COMPLETION BY 12/31/08       Can meet XX Not Included
   Cannot meet Not Included

TERMS: Net 30 60 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Please see exceptions Please reference exceptions
attached to RFP on following pages

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE (Yes or No) Yes Yes

SEVEN (7) COPIES (Yes or No) Yes Yes

ATTEST:
  Leda Coughlin Susan Leirstein CPPB
  Diane Fisher Purchasing Director
  Linda Bockstanz
G:/RFQ-COT 07-41 Financial System Software



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, November 19, 2007, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 
 
Pastor A.C. Phipps of Evanswood Church of God gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

(b) Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Fleming  

 
Resolution #2007-11-326 
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Fleming at the Regular City Council meeting of November 19, 2007 due to being out of the 
county.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a. Bridget Fluegge of Troy Families for Safe Homes, and student representatives and 

teachers from the Troy School District presented signed petitions to City Council for the 
annual National Red Ribbon Campaign. 

b. Andrea Brown, Michigan Association of Planning, presented the Best Plan Award in 
recognition of the Big Beaver Corridor Study to Mark Miller, Planning Director. 

c. On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a service commendation to 
Dave Lambert recognizing his many years of service as a volunteer and as a Council 
Member on Troy’s City Council. 

d. Thelma Kubitskey, Finance Director of Northville Charter Township and MGFOA 
President, presented the City of Troy with the Government Finance Officers Association 
Awards for the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), the Popular Annual 
Financial Report (PAFR) and the Annual Budget. 

 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 2 - 

e. Tom Darling of the Rehmann Robson Group presented the Independent Auditor’s 
Report for the fiscal year which ended on June 30, 2007.  

f. John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration presented the 
annual audit recap. 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

E-2 General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds 

 
Resolution #2007-11-327 
Moved by Kerwin   
Seconded by Beltramini  

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the provisions of Act 279, Public Acts of Michigan, 1909, as amended 
(“Act 279”) and the City Charter of the City of Troy (the “City”), and a result of the affirmative 
vote of the City's electors at the general election in the City on April 5, 1999, the City issued its 
General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2000 (Streets, Roads and Streetscape 
Improvements) (the “2000 Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $4,150,000 for the 
purpose of defraying the cost of the acquisition, construction and reconstruction of various 
street, roadway and streetscape improvements in the City and related site furnishings and 
improvements and all costs related thereto;  

 
WHEREAS, The 2000 Bonds remain outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of 
$3,500,000, mature in various principal amounts on August 1 in the years 2008 through 2020 
and bear interest at rates per annum which vary from 4.75% to 5.50%;  

 
WHEREAS, Part VI of Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended (“Act 34”) authorizes 
the City to refund all or any part of its outstanding securities;  

 
WHEREAS, The City has received a proposal from Fifth Third Securities, Inc. (the 
“Underwriter”) to refund all of the outstanding 2000 Bonds; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, The City Manager has recommended that this resolution be adopted in order to 
effect the refunding of all or part of the outstanding 2000 Bonds and this Council has 
determined that it is in the best interest of the City that such refunding be undertaken. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 
 
1. AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS -- PURPOSE.  
 
Bonds of the City, aggregating the principal sum of not to exceed four million dollars 
($4,000,000) (the “Refunding Bonds”), shall be issued and sold pursuant to the provisions of 
Act 34, and other applicable statutory provisions, for the purpose of refunding all or part of the 
2000 Bonds (the “2000 Bonds To Be Refunded”). The City Manager shall determine which of 
the 2000 Bonds shall be refunded and the principal amount of the Refunding Bonds at the time 
of sale. 
 
2. BOND DETAILS.  
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be designated “General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2007,” provided, however, if the Refunding Bonds are not delivered to the Underwriter 
on or before December 31, 2007, the Refunding Bonds shall be designated “General 
Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2008;” shall be dated as of such date as 
shall be approved by the City Manager at the time of sale; shall be numbered from 1 upwards; 
shall be fully registered; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 each or any integral multiple 
thereof not exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity at the option of the 
purchaser thereof; shall bear interest at a rate or rates not exceeding 6% per annum to be 
determined by the City Manager at the time of sale payable on such dates as shall be 
determined by the City Manager at the time of sale; and shall mature in such principal amounts 
and on such dates and in such years as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of 
sale. 
 
3. PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST.  
 
The principal of and interest on the Refunding Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the 
United States. Principal shall be payable upon presentation and surrender of the Refunding 
Bonds to the bond registrar and paying agent as they severally mature. Interest shall be paid to 
the registered owner of each Refunding Bond as shown on the registration books at the close 
of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month preceding the month in which the 
interest payment is due. Interest shall be paid when due by check or draft drawn upon and 
mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent to the registered owner at the registered 
address. 
 
4. PRIOR REDEMPTION.  
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity upon such terms and 
conditions as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale.  
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 4 - 

5. BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.  
 
Initially, one fully-registered bond for each maturity of the Refunding Bonds, in the aggregate 
amount of such maturity, shall be issued in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The 
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) for the benefit of other parties (the “Participants”) in the 
book-entry-only transfer system of DTC. In the event the City determines that it is in the best 
interest of the City not to continue the book-entry system of transfer or that the interests of the 
holders of the Refunding Bonds might be adversely affected if the book-entry system of 
transfer is continued, the City may notify DTC and the bond registrar and paying agent, 
whereupon DTC will notify the Participants of the availability through DTC of bond certificates. 
In such event, the bond registrar and paying agent shall deliver, transfer and exchange bond 
certificates as requested by DTC and any Participant or “beneficial owner” in appropriate 
amounts in accordance with this resolution. DTC may determine to discontinue providing its 
services with respect to the Refunding Bonds at any time by giving notice to the City and the 
bond registrar and paying agent and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under 
applicable law or the City may determine that DTC is incapable of discharging its duties and 
may so advise DTC. In either such event, the City shall use reasonable efforts to locate another 
securities depository. Under such circumstances (if there is no successor securities 
depository), the City and the bond registrar and paying agent shall be obligated to deliver bond 
certificates in accordance with the procedures established by this resolution. In the event bond 
certificates are issued, the provisions of this resolution shall apply to, among other things, the 
transfer and exchange of such certificates and the method of payment of principal of and 
interest on such certificates. Whenever DTC requests the City and the bond registrar and 
paying agent to do so, the City and the bond registrar and paying agent shall cooperate with 
DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to make available one or more 
separate certificates evidencing the Refunding Bonds to any Participant having Refunding 
Bonds certificated to its DTC account or to arrange for another securities depository to maintain 
custody of certificates evidencing the Refunding Bonds. 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution to the contrary, so long as any bond is 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to the 
principal of, interest on and redemption premium, if any, on the Refunding Bonds and all 
notices with respect to the Refunding Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as 
provided in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations previously entered into by the City and 
DTC, and the City Manager is authorized to enter into any additional documents with DTC on 
behalf of the City as deemed to be appropriate in order to accomplish the issuance of the 
Refunding Bonds in accordance with law and this resolution. 
 
6. BOND REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT.  
 
The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. is hereby appointed as bond registrar and paying 
agent for the Refunding Bonds, and the City Manager is authorized to enter into an agreement 
with the bond registrar and paying agent. The City Manager from time to time may designate, 
and may enter into an agreement with, a successor bond registrar and paying agent, which 
shall be a bank or trust company located in the State of Michigan which is qualified to act in 
such capacity under the laws of the United States of America or the State of Michigan. 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 5 - 

7. EXECUTION, AUTHENTICATION AND DELIVERY OF BONDS.  
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be executed in the name of the City by the facsimile signatures of 
the Mayor and the City Clerk and authenticated by the manual signature of an authorized 
representative of the bond registrar and paying agent, and the seal of the City (or a facsimile 
thereof) shall be impressed or imprinted on the Refunding Bonds. After the Refunding Bonds 
have been executed and authenticated for delivery to the Underwriter, they shall be delivered 
by the Treasurer to the Underwriter upon receipt of the purchase price. Additional Refunding 
Bonds bearing the facsimile signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk and upon which the 
seal of the City (or a facsimile thereof) is impressed or imprinted may be delivered to the bond 
registrar and paying agent for authentication and delivery in connection with the exchange or 
transfer of the Refunding Bonds. The bond registrar and paying agent shall indicate on each 
Refunding Bond the date of its authentication. 
 
8. EXCHANGE AND TRANSFER OF BONDS.  
 
Any Refunding Bond, upon surrender thereof to the bond registrar and paying agent with a 
written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent duly executed 
by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney, at the option of the registered owner 
thereof, may be exchanged for Refunding Bonds of any other authorized denominations of the 
same aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest as 
the surrendered Refunding Bond. 
 
Each Refunding Bond shall be transferable only upon the books of the City, which shall be kept 
for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon surrender of such Refunding 
Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying 
agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. 
 
Upon the exchange or transfer of any Refunding Bond, the bond registrar and paying agent on 
behalf of the City shall cancel the surrendered Refunding Bond and shall authenticate and 
deliver to the transferee a new Refunding Bond or Bonds of any authorized denomination of 
the same aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest 
as the surrendered Refunding Bond. If, at the time the bond registrar and paying agent 
authenticates and delivers a new Refunding Bond pursuant to this section, payment of interest 
on the Refunding Bonds is in default, the bond registrar and paying agent shall endorse upon 
the new Refunding Bond the following: “Payment of interest on this bond is in default. The last 
date to which interest has been paid is __________.” 
 
The City and the bond registrar and paying agent may deem and treat the person in whose 
name any Refunding Bond shall be registered upon the books of the City as the absolute 
owner of such Refunding Bond, whether such Refunding Bond shall be overdue or not, for the 
purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and interest on such Refunding Bond and for 
all other purposes, and all payments made to any such registered owner, or upon his order, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this resolution shall be valid and effectual to 
satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Refunding Bond to the extent of the sum or sums 
so paid, and neither the City nor the bond registrar and paying agent shall be affected by any 
notice to the contrary. The City agrees to indemnify and save the bond registrar and paying 
agent harmless from and against any and all loss, cost, charge, expense, judgment or liability 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 6 - 

incurred by it, acting in good faith and without negligence hereunder, in so treating such 
registered owner. 
 
For every exchange or transfer of Refunding Bonds, the City or the bond registrar and paying 
agent may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental 
charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, which sum or sums shall 
be paid by the person requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the 
exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer. 
The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange Refunding 
Bonds or portions of Refunding Bonds which have been selected for redemption. 
 
9. FORM OF BONDS.  
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 
 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
CITY OF TROY 
GENERAL OBLIGATION UNLIMITED TAX REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2007 
 
INTEREST RATE  MATURITY DATE  DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 
 
Registered Owner: 
 
Principal Amount:  
 
The City of Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the “City”), acknowledges itself 
indebted to, and for value received hereby promises to pay to, the Registered Owner identified 
above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set forth above on the Maturity Date 
specified above, unless redeemed prior thereto as hereinafter provided, upon presentation and 
surrender of this bond at the corporate trust office of The Bank of New York Trust Company, 
N.A., the bond registrar and paying agent, located in Detroit, Michigan, or other designated 
office, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be designated pursuant to 
the Resolution, and to pay to the Registered Owner, as shown on the registration books at the 
close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month preceding the month in which an 
interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon and mailed by the bond registrar and 
paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the Registered Owner at the registered 
address, interest on such Principal Amount from the Date of Original Issue set forth above, or 
such later date through which interest has been paid, until the City's obligation with respect to 
the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the rate per annum specified above. 
Interest is payable on the first days of __________ and __________ in each year, commencing 
on _____________, 200__. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the United 
States of America. 
 
This bond is one of a series of bonds aggregating the principal sum of 
__________________________ Dollars ($__________) issued by the City under and pursuant 
to and in full conformity with the Constitution and Statutes of Michigan (especially Act No. 34, 
Public Acts of 2001, as amended) and a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 7 - 

an order adopted by the City Manager of the City (said resolution and order herein collectively 
referred to as the “Resolution”) for the purpose of refunding the City’s outstanding General 
Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2000 (Streets, Roads and Streetscape Improvements) 
maturing in the years ____ through ____. The full faith and credit of the City are hereby 
pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on this bond. The City is 
authorized and required to levy annually ad valorem taxes, without limitation as to rate or 
amount, to pay such principal and interest as the same shall become due. 
 
This bond is transferable, as provided in the Resolution, only upon the books of the City kept 
for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon the surrender of this bond 
together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent 
duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing. Upon the 
exchange or transfer of this bond a new bond or bonds of any authorized denomination, in the 
same aggregate principal amount and of the same interest rate and maturity, shall be 
authenticated and delivered to the transferee in exchange therefore as provided in the 
Resolution, and upon payment of the charges, if any, therein provided. Bonds so authenticated 
and delivered shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not 
exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity. 
 
The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange bonds or 
portions of bonds which have been selected for redemption. 
 
Bonds maturing prior to ______________, ______, are not subject to redemption prior to 
maturity. Bonds maturing on and after __________________, __________, are subject to 
redemption prior to maturity at the option of the City, in such order as shall be determined by 
the City, on any one or more interest payment dates on and after _____________, 
__________. Bonds of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be partially redeemed in the 
amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. If less than all of the bonds maturing in any 
year are to be redeemed, the bonds or portions of bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by 
lot. The redemption price shall be the par value of the bond or portion of the bond called to be 
redeemed plus interest to the date fixed for redemption and a premium as follows: 
 
__% of the par value if called for redemption on or after __________, ____, but prior to 
__________, ____; 
 
No premium if called for redemption on or after __________. 
 
Not less than thirty nor more than sixty days' notice of redemption shall be given to the 
registered owners of bonds called to be redeemed by mail to each registered owner at the 
registered address. Bonds or portions of bonds called for redemption shall not bear interest on 
and after the date fixed for redemption, provided funds are on hand with the bond registrar and 
paying agent to redeem the same. 
 
It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, 
happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of the bonds of this series, existed, 
have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, 
and that the total indebtedness of the City, including the series of bonds of which this bond is 
one, does not exceed any constitutional, statutory or charter limitation. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 8 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan, by its City 
Council, has caused this bond to be executed in its name by facsimile signatures of the Mayor 
and City Clerk and its corporate seal (or a facsimile thereof) to be impressed or imprinted 
hereon. This bond shall not be valid unless the Certificate of Authentication has been manually 
executed by an authorized representative of the bond registrar and paying agent.  
 
CITY OF TROY 
 
(SEAL) 
 
By: _______________________________   
  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk    
 
By: _________________________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
This bond is one of the bonds described in the within mentioned Resolution. 
 
The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. 
Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 
 
By:  __________________________ 
  Authorized Representative 
 
AUTHENTICATION DATE: 
 
ASSIGNMENT 
 
For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
__________________________________________________ (please print or type name, 
address and taxpayer identification number of transferee) the within bond and all rights 
thereunder and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint ______________ 
_________________________________________________________________ attorney to 
transfer the within bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution 
in the premises. 
 
Dated: _______________  _______________________________ 
 
Signature Guaranteed:  _______________________________ 
 
Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in a Securities 
Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 
 
END OF BOND FOR 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 9 - 

10. SECURITY.  
 
The full faith and credit of the City are hereby pledged to the payment of the principal of and 
interest on the Refunding Bonds. There shall be levied upon all taxable property in the City 
upon the tax roll of the year 2008 and upon the tax roll of each year thereafter while any of the 
Refunding Bonds shall be outstanding, an amount such that the estimated collections 
therefrom will be sufficient to pay promptly at maturity the principal and interest maturing on the 
Refunding Bonds prior to the time of the following year's tax collections. Taxes required to be 
levied to pay principal of and interest on the Refunding Bonds shall be levied without limitation 
as to rate or amount. 
 
11. DEFEASANCE.  
 
In the event cash or direct obligations of the United States or obligations the principal of and 
interest on which are guaranteed by the United States, or a combination thereof, the principal 
of and interest on which, without reinvestment, come due at times and in amounts sufficient to 
pay, at maturity or irrevocable call for earlier optional redemption, the principal of, premium, if 
any, and interest on the Refunding Bonds, shall have been deposited in trust, this resolution 
shall be defeased and the owners of the Refunding Bonds shall have no further rights under 
this resolution except to receive payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 
the Refunding Bonds from the cash or securities deposited in trust and the interest and gains 
thereon and to transfer and exchange bonds as provided herein. 
 
12. PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FUND.  
 
There shall be established for the Refunding Bonds a Principal and Interest Fund. From the 
proceeds of the sale of the Refunding Bonds there shall be set aside in the Principal and 
Interest Fund any accrued interest received from the Underwriter at the time of delivery of the 
same. The proceeds of the taxes (both current and delinquent) to be used to pay the principal 
and interest on the Refunding Bonds when due shall be deposited as collected in the Principal 
and Interest Fund and so long as the principal or interest on the Refunding Bonds remain 
unpaid, no moneys shall be withdrawn from such fund except to pay such principal and interest 
or to pay from any investment earnings on such fund the fees and expenses of the bond 
registrar and paying agent. 
 
13. PAYMENT OF ISSUANCE EXPENSES -- ESCROW FUND.  
 
The remainder of the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds shall be used, together with available 
moneys of the City, if any, to pay the issuance expenses of the Refunding Bonds and to 
establish an escrow fund for the 2000 Bonds To Be Refunded. After the issuance expenses 
have been paid or provided for the remaining proceeds and City moneys, if any, shall be used 
to establish an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”) consisting of cash and investments in direct 
obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally 
guaranteed by, the United States of America or other obligations the principal of and interest on 
which are fully secured by the foregoing and used to pay the principal of, interest on and 
redemption premiums on the 2000 Bonds To Be Refunded. The Escrow Fund shall be held by 
The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., hereby appointed as escrow agent (the “Escrow 
Agent”), in trust pursuant to an escrow agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”) which irrevocably 
shall direct the Escrow Agent to take all necessary steps to pay the principal of and interest on 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 10 - 

the 2000 Bonds To Be Refunded when due prior to redemption and to call the 2000 Bonds To 
Be Refunded for redemption at such time as shall be determined in the Escrow Agreement. 
The City Manager shall approve the Escrow Agreement at the time of sale of the Refunding 
Bonds and shall be authorized to execute and deliver the Escrow Agreement for and on behalf 
of the City. The amounts held in the Escrow Fund shall be such that the cash and the 
investments and the income received thereon will be sufficient without reinvestment to pay the 
principal of, interest on and redemption premiums on the 2000 Bonds To Be Refunded when 
due at maturity or call for redemption as required by the Escrow Agreement. 
 
14. APPROVAL OF DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY.  
 
The issuance and sale of the Refunding Bonds shall be subject to permission being granted 
therefore by the Department of Treasury of the State of Michigan as provided in Act 34. If 
necessary, the City Manager is authorized to file an application with the Department of 
Treasury for approval of the Refunding Bonds. 
 
15. SALE, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF REFUNDING 
 BONDS.  
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be sold pursuant to a negotiated sale to the Underwriter as 
hereinafter provided, and it is hereby determined that such negotiated sale is in the best 
interests of the City and is calculated to provide the maximum flexibility in pricing the Refunding 
Bonds. The City Manager is authorized to enter into a Bond Purchase Agreement with the 
Underwriter, which Bond Purchase Agreement shall set forth the 2000 Bonds To Be Refunded 
and the principal amount, principal maturities and dates, interest rates and interest payment 
dates, redemption provisions, if any, purchase price to be paid by the Underwriter with respect 
to the Refunding Bonds and such other terms and provisions as the City Manager determines 
to be necessary or appropriate in connection with the sale of the Refunding Bonds. The Bond 
Purchase Agreement and the terms of the Refunding Bonds set forth therein shall be approved 
by an order adopted by the City Manager at the time of the sale of the Refunding Bonds. The 
Mayor, the Clerk, the City Manager and the Treasurer are each hereby authorized to do all 
things necessary to effectuate the sale, issuance, delivery, transfer and exchange of the 
Refunding Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this resolution. 
 
16. REPLACEMENT OF BONDS.  
 
Upon receipt by the City Clerk of proof of ownership of an unmatured Refunding Bond, of 
satisfactory evidence that the bond has been lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken and 
of security or indemnity which complies with applicable law and is satisfactory to the City Clerk, 
the City Clerk may authorize the bond registrar and paying agent to deliver a new executed 
Refunding Bond to replace the Refunding Bond lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken 
in compliance with applicable law. In the event an outstanding matured Refunding Bond is lost, 
apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the City Clerk may authorize the bond registrar and 
paying agent to pay the Refunding Bond without presentation upon the receipt of the same 
documentation required for the delivery of a replacement Refunding Bond. The bond registrar 
and paying agent, for each new Refunding Bond delivered or paid without presentation as 
provided above, shall require the payment of expenses, including counsel fees, which may be 
incurred by the bond registrar and paying agent and the City in the premises. Any Refunding 
Bond delivered pursuant to the provisions of this Section 16 in lieu of any Refunding Bond lost, 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 11 - 

apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken shall be of the same form and tenor and be secured 
in the same manner as the Refunding Bond in substitution for which such Refunding Bond was 
delivered. 
 
17. TAX COVENANT.  
 
The City covenants to comply with all applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended (the “Code”), necessary to assure that the interest on the Refunding Bonds 
will be and will remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The 
Mayor, the Clerk, the City Manager, the Treasurer and other appropriate City officials are 
authorized to do all things necessary (including the making of such covenants of the City as 
shall be appropriate) to assure that the interest on the Refunding Bonds will be and will remain 
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 
 
18. QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS.  
 
The Refunding Bonds are hereby designated as “qualified tax exempt obligations” as described 
in Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code. 
 
19. OFFICIAL STATEMENT.  
 
The City Manager of the City is authorized to cause the preparation of an official statement for 
the Refunding Bonds for the purpose of enabling compliance with Rule 15c2-12 issued under 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”) and to do all other things 
necessary to enable compliance with the Rule. After the award of the Refunding Bonds, the 
City will provide copies of a “final official statement” (as defined in paragraph (e)(3) of the Rule) 
on a timely basis and in reasonable quantity as requested by the Underwriter to enable the 
Underwriter to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of the Rule and the rules of the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 
20. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE.  
 
The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute a certificate of the City to 
comply with the continuing disclosure undertaking of the City with respect to the Refunding 
Bonds pursuant to paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule, and amendments to such certificate from time 
to time in accordance with the terms of such certificate (the certificate and any amendments 
thereto are collectively referred to herein as the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate”). The City 
hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 
 
21. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.  
 
The following are appointed to act in the following capacities with respect to the Refunding 
Bonds: 
 
As financial consultant:  Bendzinski & Co., Municipal Finance Advisors 
     Detroit, Michigan 
As Underwriter:   Fifth Third Securities, Inc. 
     Southfield, Michigan 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 12 - 

As bond counsel:   Dickinson Wright PLLC 
     Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 
 
22.  CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS.  
 
All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they may be in conflict herewith are hereby 
rescinded. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES this resolution 

AUTHORIZING the issuance of not to exceed $4,000,000 in general obligation unlimited tax 
refunding bonds, Series 2007. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

E-4 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Crestwood Site Condominium, Phase 2, 

4 Units/Lots Proposed on 2.3512 Acres, North Side of Wattles, East of Livernois, 

Section 15, Zoned R-1C 

  
Resolution #2007-11-328 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the preliminary site condominium 
plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium, 
known as Crestwood Site Condominium Phase 2, located on the north side of Wattles, east of 
Livernois, in Section 15, including 4 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 2.3512 
acres in size. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No action 

taken.  b) City Council Appointments: No action taken.    

 

E-3 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host – Annual Appreciation 

Banquets 

 
Resolution #2007-11-329 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Council Member Howrylak  WILL ACT as Master of Ceremonies and Official 
Host for the Annual 2008 Boards & Committees Appreciation Banquet (March 1, 2008) and 
work with the Community Affairs Department; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 13 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Council Member Beltramini WILL ACT as Master of 
Ceremonies and Official Host for the Annual 2008 Fire Fighters Appreciation Banquet (May 17, 
2008) and work with the Community Affairs Department. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

E-5  Oakland County Fire Mutual Aid Agreement 

  
Resolution #2007-11-330 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the power, privilege and authority to maintain and operate a 
fire department providing fire protection, fire suppression, technical rescue, hazardous incident 
response, and other emergency response services (“Fire Services”);    
 
WHEREAS, Fire Services can further be improved by cooperation between political 
subdivisions during times of public emergency, conflagration or disaster (“Incidents”);   
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Constitution of 1963, Article 7, § 28, and the Urban Cooperation Act 
of 1967, Act No. 7 of the Public Acts of 1967, Ex. Sess., being MCL 124.501 et seq. (the “Act”), 
permit a political subdivision to exercise jointly with any other political subdivision any power, 
privilege or authority which such political subdivisions share in common and which each might 
exercise separately;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy desires to enter into an interlocal agreement, pursuant to the Act, 
to further improve Fire Services; 
 
WHEREAS, As a result of entering into an interlocal agreement to further improve Fire 
Services, the Parties are creating the Oakland County Mutual Aid Association, as a separate 
legal entity and as a non-profit public body corporate (the “Association”), pursuant to the 
Cooperation Act; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the authority to execute this Agreement pursuant to 
resolution of its governing body; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy desires to commit personnel and equipment to another Party if 
deemed reasonable upon the request of another Party; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FINDS it is the best interest 
of its citizens from a safety and fiscal standpoint to enter into the Interlocal Agreement creating 

the Oakland County Mutual Aid Association and agrees to APPOINT one member to the 
Association Board. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 14 - 

E-6 Traffic Committee Recommendation – Parking Restrictions on Ivy Lane – No 

Action Taken  

  

E-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 17, 2007 

 
Resolution #2007-11-331 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

(a) Installation of Sign – Yield Sign on the North End of Sandshores at Walker    
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-07-SS(Y) be ISSUED for the installation of yield 
sign on the north end of Sandshores at Walker. 

 

(b) Installation of Sign – Yield Sign on Woodcrest at Hilltop    
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-08-SS(Y) be ISSUED for the installation of yield 
sign on Woodcrest at Hilltop. 

 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:05 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:15 PM. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-11-332 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2007-11-332-F-2  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 15 - 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of November 12, 

2007 be APPROVED as corrected. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Resolution #2007-11-332-F-3 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 

a) National Family Caregivers Month – November, 2007 

   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted 
 

F-5 2007/08 Budget Amendment No. 1 
 
Resolution #2007-11-332-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES 2007/08 Budget Amendment No. 1 as 

submitted, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 

F-6 Contract Award: Informal Quote Process – Snow Removal Rental Equipment 

Including Operators 
 
Resolution #2007-11-332-F-6 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide seasonal 
requirements of snow removal rental equipment including operators with an option to renew for 
one (1) additional season utilizing an informal quote process to the following vendors at the 

hourly rates contained in Appendix A, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting: 
 

COMPANY NAME   LOCATION            
Florence Cement Company  Shelby Township, MI 
Deano Mac’s Services, LLC  Oxford, MI  
Diponio Contracting   Shelby Township, MI  
Sterling Topsoil and Grading  Fraser, MI  
Agra Landscaping LLC   Birmingham, MI   

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to 
extend the hourly contract prices to other contractors, after the successful bidders have been 
employed, to speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the contracts will expire April 15, 2008, and are 

CONTINGENT upon contractors’ submission of properly executed contract documents, 
including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 16 - 

F-7 Approval of Application for Transfer of SDD and SDM License for Konja 1 
 

(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2007-11-332-F-7a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Konja 1, d/b/a Carl’s Liquor,  to transfer ownership of 2007 SDD and SDM licensed business 
from Troy Paradise, Inc. located at 5945 John R, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
  
Resolution #2007-11-332-F-7b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in 
the event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council of the City of Troy hereby 

APPROVES an agreement with Konja 1, d/b/a Carl’s Liquor, to transfer ownership of 2007 
SDD and SDM licensed business from Troy Paradise, Inc. located at 5945 John R, Troy, MI 

48085, Oakland County; and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 

document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Approval of Application for Transfer of Class C License to TKE Restaurants 
 

(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2007-11-332-F-8a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from TKE 
Restaurants, Inc., to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C licensed business located in escrow at 
1811 E. Ten Mile, Madison Heights, MI 48071, Oakland County, from Daily Double Lounge, 
Inc.: transfer location (governmental unit) (MLC 436.1531(1) to 1686 John R, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County and a new Official Permit (Food); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
 Resolution #2007-11-332-F-8b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in 
the event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 17 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with TKE Restaurants, Inc to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C licensed business located in 
escrow at 1811 E. Ten Mile, Madison Heights, MI 48071, Oakland County, from Daily Double 
Lounge, Inc,; transfer location to 1686 John R, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County and requests a 

new Official Permit (Food) Oakland County, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-9 Approval of Application for Transfer of Class C License to Capital Grille Holdings, 

Inc. and Application for New SDM and Add Space 
 

(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2007-11-332-F-9a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Capital Grille Holdings, Inc., to transfer ownership thru merger of 2007 Class C licensed 
business with official permit (food) located at 2800 W. Big Beaver, from Capital Grille of Troy  
and a new SDM license and add space; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
 Resolution #2007-11-332-F-9b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in 
the event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Capital Grille Holdings, Inc., to transfer ownership thru merger of 2007 Class C licensed 
business with official permit (food) located at 2800 W. Big Beaver, from Capital Grille of Troy 

and a new SDM license and add space, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
    

G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted   
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 18 - 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced    

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

 
Council Member Beltramini distributed a publication titled Economic Vitality to all City Council 
Members. In addition, she provided Council with a National League of Cities pamphlet outlining 
the various kinds of cross referencing the NLC is putting together on best practices in 
communities. She advised that the meeting in Louisiana was very eye-opening and she 
provided a brief description about the types of restoration and reconstruction that is currently 
taking place in the disaster areas of New Orleans, Louisiana. Council Member Beltramini 
advised that she will forward a complete report as soon as possible. 
 
Council Member Kerwin provided a copy of the program from last night’s Thanksgiving 
celebration hosted by Troy’s Interfaith Group. Council Member Kerwin discussed the event and 
added that donations were collected for Troy People Concerned and due to the generous 
amount of donations received, they were also able to provide a donation for Habitat for 
Humanity. She added that Troy’s Interfaith Group is also going to join Habitat for Humanity in 
building homes 
 
Council Member Kerwin advised that she had ice cream for a cause this evening at Baskin 
Robbins. She explained that she achieved one of Council’s goals to attract and retain 
investment, and encourage redevelopment by attending the newly renovated Baskin Robbins 
on Dequindre and Big Beaver. 
 
Mayor Schilling asked when they can expect the solar house to be ready for the public. 
 
 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services, replied that the 
foundation has been completed and they are currently getting ready to assemble it on the site. 
 
Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning added that the assembly will take place on the 29

th
  

and 30
th

 of November and the interior work will be completed shortly thereafter. 
 
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a. Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 23, 2007 
b. Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 24, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – October 31, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted  
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 19, 2007 

 

- 19 - 

J-5  Calendar 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Notice of Hearing for the Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-

15417 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-7  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – Quarterly 

Report for October, 2007 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-8  Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) Approval of Troy’s Soil 

Erosion and Sedimentation Program   
Noted and Filed 

 

J-9 Submittal of the 2007 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)   
Noted and Filed 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 
 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:23 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



PROCLAMATION 
IN RECOGNITION OF BUD AND SHIRLEY BLACK 

ON THE OCCASION OF THEIR 50TH ANNIVERSARY 
 
WHEREAS, Bud and Shirley Black were united in marriage on November 30, 1957 are now celebrating their 
50th Wedding Anniversary surrounded by family and friends; and   
 
WHEREAS, This marriage has been blessed with two daughters and two sons: Lisa, Julie, Brian, and Kevin 
who received from their parents the kind of loving and happy life that develops good citizens and wonderful, 
hard-working adults; and 
 
WHEREAS, Daughter Lisa and son-in-law George reside in Northville with their two children Nicholas and 
Sophia; daughter Julie and son-in-law Mike reside in Oklahoma with their two children Austin and Ashton; son 
Brian and daughter-in-law Luann reside in New Baltimore with their son Justin; and son Kevin and daughter-in-
law Pam reside in Oxford with their two children Kyler and Krysta; and 
 
WHEREAS, After many years of working as a Truck Engineer, Bud retired from Ford.  He is a member of the 
Troy Senior Citizens Advisory Committee.  Shirley is a psychotherapist, ran her own private practice office and 
recently retired from the Rochester Counseling Association Division of Oakland County.  Shirley volunteers at 
Beaumont Troy and both Bud and Shirley love to travel celebrating their 50th anniversary in Greece and play 
golf.  They are both Troy Citizens Academy Graduates; and  
 
WHEREAS, In addition to providing for their family a legacy of wit, wisdom, and love throughout the years, 
Bud and Shirley have been loyal Troy residents since 1986; and   
 
WHEREAS, Bud and Shirley Black have earned the respect of all with whom they have come into contact, 
and the love and affection of their children, grandchildren and a host of wonderful friends; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Bud and Shirley Black are worthy of this expression of our 
sincere congratulations on this happy occasion of their 50th wedding anniversary; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council and all of Troy’s residents extend best wishes to 
Bud and Shirley Black for many more years of good health and happiness together.  
 
Presented this 3rd day of December 2007. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03a



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
November 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  
SUBJECT:   Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder –  

Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services 
 
Background 
 Bids were received and publicly read on October 18, 2007, for seasonal requirements of lawn and 

yard services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for one 
(1) additional season.  

 176 vendors were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN system) with 
one additional vendor walk-in.  Fifteen (15) bid responses were received, and one vendor, Accord 
Landscape withdrew. 

 The award recommendation considered the vendor offering the best combination of a variety of 
factors including:  bid price, professional competence and level of service, equipment fleet, 
references, and the comfort of the residents on the program.  

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds for lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program are available initially through the 

Public Works operating budget, then reimbursed by Oakland County through the Community 
Development Block Grant Program (CDBG). 

 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 07-38, seasonal requirements of lawn and yard services for Troy residents using the 

Home Chore Program with an option to renew for one (1) additional year was competitively bid 
and opened October 18, 2007, in accordance with Chapter 7 of the City Code. 

 Award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of properly executed bid and contract 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying services 

for the City of Troy. (Goal II) 
 CDBG improves the quality of life and property to qualified residents in the City of Troy. (Goal I) 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

November 12, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services 
 
 
Options 
 City management and the Pubic Works department recommend City Council award a contract for 

seasonal requirements of lawn and yard services for Troy residents using the Home Chore 
Program with an option to renew for one (1) additional season to the low total bidder, Zimmerman 
Lawn and Snow of Roseville, MI, at unit prices contained on the bid tabulation, which expires 
December 31, 2008. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S:\Murphy’s Review\Agenda 11.19.07 SR1:Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-38
Opening Date -- 10/18/07 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 5
Date Prepared -- 11/12/07 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:
Lawn & Snow

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
50 Lawn Care Services at a Residential 8.00$             11.75$             16.75$              

Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft 9.00$             13.75$             17.75$              
Lots or corner lots

670$             1,000$             1,370$             
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 18,760.00$     28,000.00$      38,360.00$       

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 
50 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy 15.00$            59.00$             25.45$              

Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or 20.00$            69.00$             26.45$              
Lots corner lots

1,350$           5,020$             2,066$             
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 2,700.00$       10,040.00$      4,132.00$         
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: 21,460.00$    38,040.00$     42,492.00$      

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No Yes Yes No
Date 10/12 & 10/13/07

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 586-806-0347 586-771-3258 586-942-1228
24 Hour 586-206-4874 586-484-1721 586-942-1228
Contact Name Don Lewber John Purdue Kendra Newland
Hrs of Operation 24 Hrs per Day 8 am - 4 pm 8 am to 8 pm

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS: Net 30 days Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSAL:  Seasonal Requirements of Lawn & Yard Services for the Home Chore Program
with an Option to Renew for One (1) Additional Season

ATTEST:
Vicki Richardson BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER
Yvonne Ranzinger
Linda Bockstanz ________________________________

Susan Leirstein CPPB
G:\ITB-COT 07-38 Lawn Care Home Chore Program Purchasing Director

Zimmerman

10/12/2007

Distinctive Styles
LLC

PRICE PER SERVICEPRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

Accord Landscape,
LLC

Withdrew



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-38
Opening Date -- 10/18/07 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 5
Date Prepared -- 11/12/07 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME: Redburn's
Landscape Snow & Lawn, Inc

EST NO. PER SERVICE

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
50 Lawn Care Services at a Residential 14.50$            15.00$            15.00$           

Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft 16.00$            17.00$            17.00$           
Lots or corner lots

1,205$           1,260$            1,260$          
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 33,740.00$     35,280.00$     35,280.00$    

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 
50 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy 58.00$            55.00$            60.00$           

Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or 68.00$            65.00$            70.00$           
Lots corner lots

4,940$           4,700$            5,100$          
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 9,880.00$       9,400.00$       10,200.00$    
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: 43,620.00$    44,680.00$    45,480.00$   

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No No No Yes
Date - Current Contractor   

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 586-566-9483 586-634-2904 248-852-4754
24 Hour 586-615-2752 586-634-2904 248-909-0259
Contact Name Jason Gelle John Baker Jack Redburn
Hrs of Operation 6 am - 6 pm 24 Hrs 7 Days As needed

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS: Net 30 14 Days 14 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 07-38 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

Inc
Metro Detroit

PRICE PER SERVICEPRICE PER SERVICE

Universal Lawn Care



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-38
Opening Date -- 10/18/07 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 5
Date Prepared -- 11/12/07 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:   GDM Lawn Care
           LLC

EST NO.    PRICE PER SERVICE

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES ($16.00)
50 Lawn Care Services at a Residential 15.50$            15.68$              16.00$           

Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft
($17.00)

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft 16.75$            16.66$              17.50$           
Lots or corner lots

1,277.50$      1,284$              1,325$          
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 35,770.00$     35,946.40$        37,100.00$    

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP ($58.00)
50 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy 62.00$            56.84$              60.00$           

Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft
($68.00)

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or 72.00$            66.64$              70.00$           
Lots corner lots

5,260$           4,841$              5,100$          
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 10,520.00$     9,682.40$         10,200.00$    
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: 46,290.00$    45,628.80$        47,300.00$   

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No Yes No Yes
Date 10/15/2007 Sept '07

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 248-379-4261 313-935-5916 248-689-9135
24 Hour 248-379-4261 313-790-8586 248-561-5839
Contact Name David Semaan Marlin Maxwell Gene Mead
Hrs of Operation 5 am - 9 pm 8 to 6 pm 7 am - 6 pm

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS: Net 30 2% Net 10 14 Days

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 07-38 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

Family Landscaping
LLC

PRICE PER SERVICEPRICE PER SERVICE

Alpha One
Services



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-38
Opening Date -- 10/18/07 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 5
Date Prepared -- 11/12/07 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME: Pro-Turf LLC

EST NO.  PRICE PER SERVICE

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
50 Lawn Care Services at a Residential 15.75$            16.00$            15.95$              

Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft 17.50$            17.00$            17.45$              
Lots or corner lots

1,312.50$      1,310$            1,321$             
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 36,750.00$     36,680.00$     36,988.00$       

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 
50 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy 62.50$            65.00$            62.00$              

Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or 72.50$            70.00$            72.00$              
Lots corner lots

5,300$           5,350$            5,260$             
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 10,600.00$     10,700.00$     10,520.00$       
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: 47,350.00$    47,380.00$     47,508.00$      

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No No Yes Yes
Date 10/5/2007 10/3 & 10/9/07

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 586-784-9095 586-791-7986 586-781-5223
24 Hour 586-531-3490 586-634-6181 586-781-5223
Contact Name Phillip Kent Baron & Garry O'Neal Mark Parise
Hrs of Operation 7 am - 8 pm 24 24 Hrs

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS: Net 30 Blank Net 30

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 07-38 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

Sons
Kent Lawn Care

Inc
O'Neal Father & 

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-38
Opening Date -- 10/18/07 BID TABULATION Pg 5 of 5
Date Prepared -- 11/12/07 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:
Season Lawn

       Service

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
50 Lawn Care Services at a Residential 20.00$               20.50$            24.00$          

Lots Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 100 ft x 180 ft 21.00$               22.00$            28.00$          
Lots or corner lots

1,630$              1,685$            2,040$         
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 45,640.00$         47,180.00$     57,120.00$   

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 
50 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy 65.00$               65.00$            125.00$        

Lots home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 100 ft x 180 ft or 75.00$               75.00$            150.00$        
Lots corner lots

5,500$              5,500$            10,750$       
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 11,000.00$         11,000.00$     21,500.00$   
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: 56,640.00$        58,180.00$     78,620.00$  

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No Yes Yes Yes
Date 1/3/2006 10/13/2007

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 810-329-3633 248-632-6522 586-201-3608
24 Hour 810-217-7258 313-221-3268 586-201-3608
Contact Name Kevin Hutkowski P.Young/K.Debrowsky Voula & Jack Fragidis

Hrs of Operation M-F 9am to 5pm 9:00 am - 7:00 pm  7:30 am - 8:30 pm

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet XX

+ $860.00
TERMS: Net 30 Days 14 Days Net 20

EXCEPTIONS: Blank None Attached to Bid
   --Insurance--

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 07-38 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

Landscaping, LLC

1/10/2006

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

Kevin's Lawn
Care & Snow 
Removal, Inc.

Diamond Scape Brothers All 

PRICE PER SERVICE



 
Date  November 26, 2007 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
  
Background: 

• Signature Ford and Varsity Ford are the low total bidders in the Macomb County cooperative bid. 
• The vehicles being purchased are replacement vehicles for those sold at auction. 
• To reduce the City’s consumption of fuel, the Fleet Division recommends the purchase of a hybrid 

vehicle to be used by City Inspectors that travel throughout Troy’s subdivisions with multiple stops.  
The vehicles currently used by the inspectors average between 17 to 20 MPG for mid-size sedans 
and 10 to 12 MPG for mid-size pickups.  The recommended hybrid will average between 30 and 
34 MPG and also has an 8-year, 100,000 mile warranty on the hybrid components. This is just the 
first step the Fleet Division is taking in “Greening the Fleet” and reducing future fuel 
consumptions. 

 
Financial Considerations: 

• Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account # 565.7981. 
• The Fleet Maintenance Division has sufficient funds to cover the additional $2,146.00 from other 

items that were less than estimated. 
 

                                                                                                                                             ESTIMATED 
     BUDGET           UNIT COST    TOTAL 

SIGNATURE FORD, L-M JEEP 
(1) Ford Escape Hybrid FWD   $ 17,500.00  $23,235.00          $ 23,235.00 
     
VARSITY FORD  
(1) Ford Taurus SEL FWD    $ 22,000.00  $18,411.00          $ 18,411.00 
    

                 ESTIMATED TOTAL   $ 39,500.00             $ 41,646.00  
 
Legal Considerations:  

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 
Policy Considerations: 

• The vehicles are used on a daily basis to assure proper and proactive Police and Public Works 
protection and service (Goal I & V). 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04b



• The purchase of the Police and Public Works vehicles would assure the safety and welfare of 
citizens and businesses and also reduce the liability for the City. (Goal I & V). 

Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – 
Fleet Vehicles 
Page 2 
 
 

Options: 
• City management and the Public Works Fleet Division recommend awarding contracts to provide 

one (1) 2008 Ford Escape Hybrid FWD for Public Works from Signature Ford, L-M Jeep of 
Owosso, MI, and one (1) 2008 Ford Taurus for Police from Varsity Ford of Ann Arbor, MI, through 
the Macomb County purchasing agreement at an estimated total cost of $23,235.00 and 
$18,411.00 respectively.   

 
G:\Purchasing\Bid Award 06-07 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 -Vehicles MC 12.07 
 
 



campbellld
Text Box
F-05













campbellld
Text Box
F-06













campbellld
Text Box
F-07













campbellld
Text Box
F-08









campbellld
Text Box
F-09























campbellld
Text Box
F-10































campbellld
Text Box
F-11









campbellld
Text Box
F-12

























campbellld
Text Box
F-13











 

 
 
November 21, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Deficit Elimination Plan  
 
 
Background: 
 
 It is a requirement of the State of Michigan that any fund of a municipality reporting negative 

net assets shall file a Deficit Elimination Plan (DEP) with the Department of Treasury after 
approval by the local legislative body. 

 For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007 the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course fund met this 
criterion.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The attached DEP recognizes the cause of these negative net assets and identifies future 

remedies. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The governing body of the employer must certify by resolution that any DEP is approved and 

adopted. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Adoption will satisfy State of Michigan reporting requirements (Goal III). 

 
Options: 
 
 Staff recommends that City Council approve the DEP(s). 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-14



CITY OF TROY DEFICIT ELIMINATION PLAN 
 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course  
 
A number of factors contributed to this deficit, the most significant being the delay in opening 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course (SLGC). The debt service payment schedule was based upon the 
course being in full operation prior to July 1, 2004. That not being the case, first year revenue 
was well below projections while fixed costs remained in place. As a new entity with no net 
asset reserve available, the revenue shortfall immediately created the deficit situation. 
 
In its third year of operations SLGC experienced a negative change in net assets of $622,950 
compared to $557,510 last fiscal year. Promotional efforts have increased and additional 
leagues and outings are reserving for 2008, but the downturn in recreational spending is 
hampering potential profitability. With current industry wide softness in golf sales it is anticipated 
that the deficit elimination will be a multi-year effort, as indicated in the following plan: 
 
 
SLGC Net Assets, June 30, 2007    $ (1,980,109) 
 
Budgeted expenditures, FY 07-08    (2,050,670) 
Budgeted revenue, FY 07-08          1,294,090 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2008   $ (2,736,689) 
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 08-09     (1,767,480) 
Estimated revenue, FY 08-09         2,400,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2009   $ (2,104,169) 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 09-10    (1,900,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 09-10          2,700,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2010   $     (1,304,169) 
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 10-11    (2,200,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 10-11          2,800,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2011   $       (704,169) 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 11-12    (2,275,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 11-12          3,000,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2012   $            20,831 
 
 
Under this plan the deficit will be eliminated by June 30, 2012. Please advise if further 
information is requested. 
 



campbellld
Text Box
F-15











campbellld
Text Box
F-16







Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
November 26, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Steamers Café Contract  
 

Background 
 

 The Troy Public Library created space for a café in 1999. Staff wanted to provide a 
gathering place for groups of all types, as well as to encourage longer visits from patrons 
by providing a place where they might take a break from their work.  

 The café is now viewed by both staff and patrons as a regular service.  
 The Francis family has operated Steamers Café at the Troy Public Library for the past two 

years. The current contract with Mr. Francis terminates on December 31, 2007. (Resolution 
#2005-12-554a) 

 The City of Troy will solicit bids for the operation of the café in July, 2008. Renewing the 
contract for café with Mr. Francis for one year allows the Francis family an opportunity to 
plan for the future, allows the library director to consider other options for café 
management, and allows the café, a popular place within the library, to remain open.  
 

Financial Considerations 
 
 The café space is leased for $750 per month.  If the space is not leased, it will result in a loss of 

revenue of $9,000 for 2008.   
 

Legal Considerations 
 
 The contract has been revised to emphasize the service nature of the business, as well as the 

commitment of the Troy Public Library and the City of Troy to high standards of excellence.  
 

Policy Considerations 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community (Goal I) 
 Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs (Goal V) 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-17



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
November 26, 2007 

 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Steamers Café Contract 

 

Options 
 
 The current contract terminates on December 31, 2007. If a new contract is not approved, the 

café space will be vacant.  

 It is the recommendation of staff that a one year agreement be entered into with Zeyn 
Francis of 5253 Windmill Drive, Troy, MI  48085, for the operation of the Library’s 
Steamers Café beginning January 1, 2008 and ending on December 31, 2008.   
 

 
Reviewed and Approved as to Form:  ___________________________________   
       Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 



 1 

AGREEMENT FOR THE LIBRARY CAFÉ 

 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT entered into on __________________________, 2007, between 

the CITY OF TROY, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084, a Michigan Municipal 

corporation, hereinafter referred to as the “City”, and Zeyn Francis, 5253 Windmill Drive, 

Troy, Michigan, 48085, hereinafter referred to as the “Café Operator”; 

 In consideration of the City granting the Café Operator the exclusive privilege and 

right of conducting the sale of food, drinks and other sundry related articles, excluding 

vending machines, in the City of Troy Library, 510 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 

48084, the Café Operator agrees as follows: 

1. RENT AND TERM OF AGREEMENT:  In consideration of  the fact that the  

Café Operator is restricted on outside identification signage, and has no direct entrance/exit 

from the café area, and is limited to the sale of food/beverages, as provided in this Agreement, 

the City agrees to charge a minimum amount of rent of seven hundred and fifty ($750.00) 

dollars per month, which shall be due on or before the first day of each month commencing 

January 1, 2008.    The first and last month’s rent and a $750.00 security deposit shall be paid 

to the City by January 1, 2008. The security deposit of $750.00 may be used by the City for 

reimbursement of costs to correct any damages caused by the Café Operator during the period 

of the lease.  If the City determines that there are no damages caused by the Café Operator, 

the City shall return the $750.00 no later than thirty (30) days after the expiration of the lease. 

Late rent payments are subject to a 10% penalty for each month not received by the due date.  

If the City determines that the Café’ Operator is responsible for any damage to the premises, 

then the City shall deduct the cost of any repairs necessitated by the Café Operator, and shall 

return any remaining funds to the Café’ Operator.   



 2 

  The term of the lease shall be for a one (1) year period from January 1, 2008 to 

December 31, 2008.  On December 31, 2008 the lease shall terminate.   It is the City’s intent 

to seek proposals for Library Café services for services that would begin on January 1, 2009.  

The City shall be allowed to show the Library Café space to potential bidders.  

 The Café Operator shall have the right to terminate the Agreement upon ninety (90) 

days written notice sent by certified mail as set out in Paragraph 19. The City shall have the 

right to terminate the Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ written notice with or without cause 

and at the sole discretion of the City. 

2.  IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT:  The Café Operator shall provide an 

irrevocable letter of credit, in favor of the City, in the amount of $9,000.00.  This letter shall 

be in effect for the period from January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2008. 

Rent is due on the first (1
st
) day of each month.  If the rent is not paid by the tenth 

(10
h
) day of the month, the City may give thirty (30) days notice of termination of the 

Agreement and then can terminate the Agreement and/or shall be allowed to take whatever 

actions are available under law to collect unpaid rent, including collection against the 

irrevocable letter of credit.  Even if the City chooses not to terminate the Agreement, the City 

may take action to collect any indebtedness against the irrevocable letter of credit each time a 

monthly rental payment is not paid by the tenth (10
th

) day of the month.  The City does not 

waive the right to use this remedy, even when the right is not exercised by the City.    

3. USE OF PREMISES AND LIMITATIONS:  The Café Operator shall provide a 

food/beverage service to all users of the Troy Public Library.  At no time are the Library Café 

premises to be used for private gatherings of the Café Operator, his family or his staff without 

the prior written approval of the City.  The items sold or marketed and the operation 



 3 

hours/schedules are subject to regulation by the City and the Café’ Operator shall not make 

any changes without prior approval of the Library Director or designee. 

 The Café Operator and staff shall conduct business in such a professional manner as to 

give quality customer services to users of the Library café.  The lack of quality service, lack 

of supplies, failure to open on time and failure to provide helpful and courteous staff 

negatively reflects on the reputation of the Library and the City, and therefore any such failure 

can  result in a termination of the Agreement, at the City’s discretion, as provided for in 

Paragraph 1. 

The Café Operator must not offer non-food items that are competitive with the items 

that are offered by the Friends of the Library, and the City has the sole right to make a 

decision as to whether the non-food items provided by the Café Operator are competitive with 

Friends of the Library, and therefore are prohibited.   The City shall give written notice to the 

Café Operator when the Library Director or designee determines that the non-food offerings 

are competitive with the items offered by the Friends of the Library.   Upon receipt of such 

notice, the Café Operator shall have five (5) days to cease the competitive activity or practice 

that is identified. After receipt of the notification, as set forth above, the Café’ Operator’s 

continuation of prohibited activity or practice is a breach of the Agreement, and may result in 

termination, in the City’s discretion.  

With the approval by the Library Director or designee, Café Operator may sell non-

food retail items for marketing/advertising purposes, such as coffee mugs, t-shirts and similar 

items, bearing marketing/advertising logos. 

4.  COOKING USES OF PREMISES AND LIMITATIONS:  Due to the fact that 

there is no exhaust vent in the café area, the Café Operator shall not cook over open flame 



 4 

upon the premises or use traditional gas or electric stoves.  Instead, food shall be heated by 

means of microwave, toaster, toaster oven, heating coils, coffee machines and similar 

methods.  The City has the right to order the discontinuance of any type of cooking or heating 

method which in its sole discretion believes may be a safety hazard to its personnel, the public 

or to property.  The Café Operator shall immediately discontinue any unapproved cooking 

method, when advised to do so by the Library Director or designee.  Failure to discontinue the 

unapproved cooking shall be deemed a breach of the Agreement. 

5.  MAINTENANCE OF PREMISES:  The Café Operator is fully responsible for all 

custodial services in the café area, including but not limited to, the maintenance of the interior 

of the premises, the counters, the service windows and all areas of the café, which must 

remain in a clean and neat manner and in compliance with all City Ordinances, State law and 

applicable health standards and regulations.  The Café Operator shall maintain the trash 

receptacles in the café area.  The Café Operator is responsible for cleaning all equipment and 

quickly reporting any type of mechanical problem to the Library Director. 

6.  CAFÉ OPERATOR’S EMPLOYEES:  The Café Operator shall provide 

appropriate uniforms and name badges for his employees and shall require that all employees 

maintain themselves and their uniforms in a clean and neat appearance.  The Café Operator is 

responsible for all wages, benefits or any other conditions of employment and acknowledges 

that his employees have no employment relationship with the City. 

Since it is difficult for Library patrons to distinguish the Café as a separate operation 

from the Library, complaints received by Library staff concerning the service levels or 

demeanor of Café employees will be discussed with the Café Operator.  It is the Café 

Operator’s responsibility to take action to solve the reported employee issues immediately.  If 



 5 

the situation continues, the City can request removal of that employee from the Library Café 

operation, and the Café Operator must remove of the reported employee from the premises 

and the business operation.        

7.  INSPECTION AND REPAIR:  The City shall have the right to enter and/or 

inspect the café area at any reasonable time.  The Café Operator will pay the expense of 

repairs to the premises and the periodic maintenance caused by normal wear and tear of the 

café area.  Structural or other significant changes to the building café area must be approved 

in advance by the City.  The City will make every effort to notify the Café Operator in 

advance if non-City employees will be entering on the premises at the City’s request.  Any 

additions, repairs and/or improvement made on the premises by the Café Operator shall 

become the property of the City. 

The City of Troy will provide a list of equipment that is the property of the Café 

Operator but not specifically located in the Café area such as the water heater, etc.  The Café 

Operator will pay the expense of maintenance and repairs including replacement if needed of 

this equipment. 

8.  NO INTOXICATING LIQUOR:  The Café Operator, his employees and/or 

agents shall not sell intoxicating liquor or permit and/or knowingly allow intoxicating liquor 

to be consumed in the café area.  The Café Operator shall be deemed responsible if such 

conduct occurs. 

9.  CAFÉ SUPPLIES/EQUIPMENT AND MODIFICATIONS:  The Café Operator 

shall provide all necessary equipment, supplies, building modifications and personnel to staff 

the operation of the café at the required level of service.  Building and/or City owned 

equipment modifications shall be approved in advance by the City and shall become the 



 6 

property of the City at the conclusion or upon termination by either party of this Agreement.  

Additionally, the Café’ Operator shall obtain City approval in advance for any of Cafe’ 

Operator’s equipment that is planned to be used  and is not currently being used.   

10.  HOURS AND CHANGES IN HOURS AND PRICES:  The operation  

hours/schedules of the café are subject to regulation by the City and, once established, no 

changes shall be made without prior approval of the City.  Current hours of Library Café 

operation are as follows: 

Monday – Thursday  9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

Friday    9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Saturday            10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Sunday   1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 

Prices shall be posted for patrons and no greater amount shall be charged than the 

posted amounts plus tax, if applicable.  A detailed printed description of prices shall be 

available for review by the City at the City’s request.  

11.  RECORDS:  The Café Operator shall keep accurate records of all sales and 

receipts through the use of computerized/electronic cash registers which provide daily tapes 

and reports. Those cash registers shall be approved by the City prior to commencement of the 

Agreement.  The Café Operator shall submit a copy of its monthly Michigan Department of 

Treasury Sales Tax Return upon request.  An annual report, summarizing the monthly reports, 

shall be submitted to the City by April 1
st
 of each year that the Agreement is in effect.  The 

City shall have the right to inspect the books, record and inventories of the Café Operator at 

any reasonable time. 



 7 

12.  ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT/INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  The 

Café Operator may assign this Agreement to a subsequent buyer of the Café Operator’s 

business, but only with the prior consent of City Council. Prior to City Council approval,  the 

City shall be allowed to inquire into, and purchaser of Café Operator’s business shall be 

required to produce information as may be requested by the City to make reasonable 

investigations into the prospective Company’s ability to successfully fulfill the contract 

requirements. Café Operator agrees to sign an assignment of the Agreement similar to the 

Sample assignment attached to this Agreement prior to submittal of the request for assignment 

to City Council.  

 The Café Operator acknowledges that he is an independent contractor with no 

authority to bind the City to any contracts or agreements, written or oral. 

13.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  The Café Operator shall at all times be in 

compliance with all federal and State Statutes and City ordinances and with all Oakland 

County Health Department licensing requirements, rules and regulation. 

14.  INSURANCE:  The Café Operator shall maintain liability insurance in the 

amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) for any actions, claims, liability or damages 

caused to persons and/or property arising out of the operation and/or maintenance of the food 

service and café area, in addition to product liability and workers’ compensation insurance.  

All insurance coverage shall be approved by the City.  Certificates of Insurance shall comply 

with the sample form attached hereto.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under 

all policies except workers’ compensation.  All insurance companies must be licensed and 

admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  All insurance set out herein shall be 

maintained for the duration of the Agreement.  Failure to maintain coverage or to continue to 



 8 

maintain coverage shall be considered a breach of the Agreement and may result in immediate 

termination of the Agreement, at the discretion of the City.  The Café Operator is responsible 

for paying any deductibles that are required under his policies of insurance. 

15.  INDEMNIFY/HOLD HARMLESS:  The Café Operator agrees to indemnify 

and hold the City harmless for any claims, actions, liabilities or damages arising out of the 

operation, maintenance or management of the food/beverage service or the café. 

16.  REPORTS OF CLAIMS:  Copies of all claims, damage or accident reports 

received by the Café Operator, his employees and/or agents, whether submitted to any 

insurance company or not, relating to any damage or accident that occurred or is alleged to 

have occurred on the premises or by the Café Operator, his employees and/or agents, shall be 

sent to the City. 

17.  PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES:  The Café Operator shall be liable for any 

personal property taxes assessed against its equipment or inventory. 

18.  UTILITY COSTS:  The City will pay utility costs. 

 19.  NOTICE:  All written notices to be given under this Agreement shall be mailed 

by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the other party at their addresses set forth herein 

or at such address as the party may provide in writing from time to time.  Any such notice 

shall be deemed to have been received five (5) days subsequent to mailing. 

 20.  SECTION HEADINGS:  All section headings contained herein are for the 

convenience of reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any 

provisions of the Agreement. 

 21.  SEVERABILITY:  If any provision of this Agreement or the application of such 

provision at any person, entity or circumstance shall be held invalid, the remainder of this 



 9 

Agreement, or the application of such provision to persons, entities or circumstances, other 

than those as to which it is held invalid, shall not be effected. 

 22.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement and 

any changes thereto shall be in writing signed by both the parties unless otherwise set out in 

this Agreement. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Café Operator have executed this 

Agreement. 

 

WITNESSES: CAFÉ OPERATOR:  

 

____________________________________ _________________________________ 

       Zeyn Francis 

 

 

____________________________________ 

 

 

 

 CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN: 

 

____________________________________ _________________________________ 

 By:  Louise Schilling, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ _________________________________ 

 By:  Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 



 
 
DATE: November 27, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Proposed Rite Aid 

Pharmacy Development, North side of Long Lake, East side of Rochester Road, 
Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 (File Number Z-729) 

 

 
Background: 
 

 A public hearing is scheduled for the December 17, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 

 The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone the parcel to B-2 
at the November 13, 2007 Regular meeting.   
 

 The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Community Service Area.  The 
Community Service Area classification has a primary correlation with the B-2 zoning district.  
The application therefore is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 

 Parcel 1 (1047 – 1055 E. Long Lake) is approximately 0.67 acres in size and Parcel 2 (5016-
5024 Rochester) is approximately 0.68 acres in size for a total of approximately 1.35 acres.  
Small retail centers currently sit on Parcel 1 and Parcel 2.  The applicant proposes to 
assemble Parcels 1 and 2 along with Parcel 3 which is approximately 1.01 acres in size and 
located immediately south and west of the proposed rezoning and is currently developed as a 
gasoline service station.  The stated intent is to construct a Rite Aid Pharmacy including a 
drive-up window. The total size of the assembled parcel will be approximately 2.36 acres. 
 

 The applicant decided that Parcel 3 shall remain zoned H-S Highway Service classification to 
permit the gasoline service station to continue.  If the proposed future development is not 
approved, the gasoline service station will remain a conforming use.  A pharmacy with drive-up 
window is a use permitted in both the H-S Highway Service and B-2 Community Business 
zoning districts. 

 

 The application is consistent with the general character of the area and compatible with adjacent 
zoning districts and land uses. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 Approval of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and 
attract investment while encouraging redevelopment). 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 

 No City Council action required until the December 17, 2007 public hearing.   
 
 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Planning Commission report dated October 22, 2007. 
3. Minutes from the November 13, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
4. Public comment. 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 729 
 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-729 Rite Aid Development Sec 11\Announce CC Public Hearing 12 17 07.doc 

 
 



R
O

C
H

E
STE

R

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

KS

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
A

M
S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



E LONG LAKE

MAYBERRY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

A
SHLEY

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED RITE AID DEVELOPMENT
FROM B-1 TO B-2
N SIDE LONG LAKE, E SIDE ROCHESTER RD.
SEC. 11  (Z-729)

SUBJECT PARCEL

0 200 400100
Feet ³



E LONG LAKE

MAYBERRY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

A
SHLEY

O-1

R-1C

B-1

B-2

H-S

B-3

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED RITE AID DEVELOPMENT
FROM B-1 TO B-2
N SIDE LONG LAKE, E SIDE ROCHESTER RD.
SEC. 11  (Z-729)

SUBJECT PARCEL

0 200 400100
Feet ³





 1 

DATE: October 22, 2007 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION – Proposed Rite Aid 

Pharmacy Development, North side of Long Lake, East side of Rochester 
Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 (Z-729) 

 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Arkon Jonna of A. F. Jonna Development Co.  The applicant is John 
Hennessey of Hennessey Engineers Inc. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the north side of Long Lake Road and the east side of 
Rochester Road, in Section 11. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
Parcel 1 (1047 – 1055 E. Long Lake) is approximately 0.67 acres in size and Parcel 2 
(5016-5024 Rochester) is approximately 0.68 acres in size for a total of approximately 
1.35 acres. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Small retail centers currently sit on Parcel 1 and Parcel 2. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-1 Local Business.   
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-2 Community Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to assemble Parcels 1 and 2 along with Parcel 3 which is 
approximately 1.01 acres in size and located immediately south and west of the 
proposed rezoning and is currently developed as a gasoline service station.  The stated 
intent is to construct a Rite Aid Pharmacy including a drive-up window. The total size of 
the assembled parcel will be approximately 2.36 acres. 



 2 

The applicant decided that Parcel 3 shall remain zoned H-S Highway Service 
classification to permit the gasoline service station to continue.  If the proposed future 
development is not approved, the gasoline service station will remain a conforming use.  
A pharmacy with drive-up window is a use permitted in both the H-S Highway Service 
and B-2 Community Business zoning districts. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-1 Local Business. 
South: H-S Highway Service, B-3 General Business and O-1 Low Rise Office. 
East: B-2 Community Business. 
West: H-S Highway Service, B-2 Community Business and O-1 Low Rise Office. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Father & Son Construction. 
South: Gas Station, Belle Tire & Bank. 
East: Shopping Center. 
West: Gas Station, Bank & Shopping Center. 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-2 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-1 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions,  

 
Any retail business whose principal activity is the sale of merchandise in an 
enclosed building, except for those limited to or first permitted in the B-3 General 
Business District. 

 
Any service establishment of a showroom or workshop nature, of an electrician, 
decorator, dressmaker, tailor, baker, painter, upholsterer; or an establishment 
doing radio or home appliance repair, photographic studios and reproduction and 
similar service establishments that require a retail adjunct. 

 
Business establishments which perform services on the premises, such as but not 
limited to:  banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance offices, travel services, and real estate offices. 

 
 Private clubs, fraternal organization, and lodge halls. 
 

Restaurants, or other places serving food or beverage, except those having the 
character of a drive-in or open front store. 



 3 

Theaters, assembly halls, concert halls or similar places of assembly, when 
conducted completely within enclosed buildings. 
 
Business schools and colleges or private schools operated for profit, not including 
nursery schools. 

 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 

Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 

Drive-up Windows or Service Facilities, as Accessory to Principal Uses within B-2 
Districts, Apart from Restaurants 

 
Outside seating areas, of twenty (20) seats or less, for restaurants or other food 
service establishments 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 

Drive-Up Windows or Service Facilities, as an Accessory to Restaurants Permitted 
Within this District 

 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating, rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or health clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation, 
when the subject uses are located at least 100 feet from any Residential District. 

 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-2 District as follows: 

  A. Retail sales of plant material not grown on the site, and sales of lawn 
furniture, playground equipment and garden supplies. 

  B. Recreational space providing shuffleboard, miniature golf, tennis, or 
similar outdoor recreation, when part of a planned development. 

  C. Outdoor driver training and testing areas on or abutting the site of a driving 
school. 

 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments 

 
Facilities within a retail establishment for installation, in vehicles, of items sold at 
retail at that location. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcels front on Rochester Road and Long Lake Road. 



 4 

Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Community Service Area.  The 
Community Service Area classification has a primary correlation with the B-2 zoning 
district and a secondary correlation with the B-3, B-1 and O-1 zoning districts.  The 
application therefore is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards of the B-2 District:  
There are no Location Standards for the B-2 General Commercial District. 
 
 

CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
The rezoning application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and 
compatible with abutting zoning districts and uses.   
 
City Management recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
cc: Applicant 

File / Z 729 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-729 Rite Aid Development Sec 11\PC Report Z-729 11 13 07.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 

 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 729) – Proposed Rite Aid 

Pharmacy Development, North side of Long Lake, East side of Rochester Road, 
Section 11 – B-1 (Local Business) District to B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management 
to approve the rezoning request.  Mr. Savidant announced that a letter of 
opposition was distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s 
meeting.   
 
Ms. Troshynski asked which direction the store would face.  
 
Chair Schultz asked the Assistant City Attorney to address discussion of site plan 
issues at the time a rezoning request is considered.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said members are not to consider site plan issues during the 
approval process of a rezoning request, but consideration should be given to all 
applicable uses in a specific zoning district.  She indicated the developer would 
not be bound by any commitments made relating to the site plan.   
 
The petitioner was present.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-165 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on the north side of Long 
Lake Road, east of Rochester Road, within Section 11, being approximately 1.35 
acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 







      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 3, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items:  

G-2 No Memorandums  

campbellld
Text Box
G-02



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 3, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 3, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
I-01



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            SEPTEMBER 17, 2007  

 Page 1 of 2 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
September 17, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 
West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 
6:58 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: None 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of August 13, 2007 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2007-09-020 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the August 13, 2007 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: None 
 

 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. 1555 E. Maple LLC requests to transfer ownership of 2005 Class C 

licensed business with dance permit, located in escrow at 1555 E. Maple, 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            SEPTEMBER 17, 2007  

 Page 2 of 2 

Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from Jumbo Investment, Inc.; with license 
to be held in escrow. {MLCC req #367206}  

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was the previous property 
owner, Wendy Thagard.  She explained that the property had been sold and may 
be developed into a hotel.  She is currently negotiating with a restaurant owner in 
Farmington Hills to purchase her liquor license. 
 
Resolution #LC2007-09-021 
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that 1555 E. Maple LLC be allowed to transfer ownership of 2005 
Class C licensed business with dance permit, located in escrow at 1555 E. Maple, 
Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from Jumbo Investment, Inc.; with license to be 
held in escrow.  
 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: None 
 
 

 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at  7:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



   
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES DRAFT September 19, 2007  

  
  
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, 
September 19, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Troy, Michigan. Alan Kiriluk called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m.  
  
  
  
PRESENT:   Michael Culpepper  

David Hay  
Michele Hodges  
Alan Kiriluk  
Daniel MacLeish (arrived @ 7:33)  
Carol Price  
Ernest Reschke  
Douglas Schroeder  
G. Thomas York  
  
  

ABSENT:    Stuart Frankel   
William Kennis  
Louise Schilling  

    Harvey Weiss  
  

  
ALSO PRESENT:  John M. Lamerato  

Brian Murphy    
      Lori Bluhm  
      Mark Miller   
  
  
  
APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
  
Resolution:    DD-07-18  
Moved by:     Hodges  
Seconded by:  Price  
  
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the August 15, 2007 regular meeting be approved.  
  
Yeas:  All (8)  
Absent: Frankel, Kennis. MacLeish, Schilling, Weiss  
  
 
  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



OLD BUSINESS  
  
None  
  
  
NEW BUSINESS 
  
  
A. Champion Enterprises Local Incentive Match  
  
 
Resolution:   DD-07-19  
Moved by:    Hodges  
Seconded by: MacLeish  
  
WHEREAS, Champion Enterprises is locating to 755 West Big Beaver, following a suite 
of incentives provided by the State of Michigan and Oakland County, and  
  
WHEREAS, the DDA is requested to make a local match of up to $20,000 for 
combination of leasehold, plaza and other landscape improvements to 755 West Big 
Beaver, and  
  
WHEREAS, TDDA Plan #6 allows for DDA funds to be used to improve land and 
construct, reconstruct, rehabilitate, restore and preserve, equip, improve, maintain, and 
repair any building, and any necessary or desirable appurtenances to that property, and  
  
WHEREAS, the TDDA Board finds that the improvements halts property value 
deterioration and/or aids in the economic growth of the downtown district, therefore be it  
  
RESOLVED, that the Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) provide 
Champion Enterprises a local match of up to $20,000 for combination of leasehold, 
plaza and other landscape improvements to 755 West Big Beaver, provided the funds 
are spent in keeping with the terms and conditions of the TDDA Development Plans and 
the TIF Plan.  
  
Yeas:  All (9)  
Absent: Frankel, Kennis, Schilling, Weiss  
  
  
  
B. Planning Commission Update  
  
 
Mark Miller gave an update on the Master Plan, Big Beaver Development Code and 
Pavilions of Troy projects.  
  



  
C. Committee Updates  
  
 
Brian Murphy gave an update on various projects.  
    
  
PUBLIC COMMENT  
  
None  
  
  
MEMBER COMMENT  
  
  
Michele Hodges gave a brief update on the UM/ULI and the Aloe Terra projects.  
The Board wishes Carol Price well in her last meeting.  
  
  
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS  
  
Resolution:    DD-07-20  
Moved by:    Culpepper  
Seconded by:  York  
  
RESOLVED, That Frankel, Kennis, Schilling and Weiss be excused.  
  
Yeas:   All (9)  
Absent:  Frankel, Kennis, Schilling, Weiss  
  
  
The meeting was adjourned at 7:56 a.m.  
  
Next Meeting:  October 17, 2007 @ 7:30 a.m. @ Lower Level Conference Room, 
City Hall.  
  

  
         
________________________________________  

Alan Kiriluk, Chair    
  
  

________________________________________  
            John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer  
  
JL/ph  



campbellld
Text Box
J-01c







 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - FINAL October 11, 2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday, October 11, 2007 
at the Office of the Library Director.  Kul Gauri, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 
7:35 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Heather Eisenbacher 
   Kul B. Gauri 
        Lynne Gregory 

   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
           
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-10-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That Arthi Krishna and Shruthi Subramanian be excused. 
 
Yes:  5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-10-02 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of September 6, 2007 be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries. C. Russ added Cooperative Plan of Service under New 
Business, part A. C. Russ also recommended that the discussion about the Needs 
Assessment/Feasibility Study take place at the end of the business portion of the 
meeting, following the Visitor’s Comments.  
 
Resolution #LB-2007-10-03 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



 2 

RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no Postponed items. 
 
NEW BUSINESS. 

A. Cooperative Plan of Service 
Russ briefly reviewed the changes to the Suburban Library Cooperative’s Plan of 
Service. Very few changes, and those changes are minor.  
 
Resolution #LB-2007-10-04 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, that the Suburban Library Cooperative’s Plan of Service be approved.  

.  
B. 2006-2007 Revenue Statistics 
Russ distributed information about revenue from fines and rentals, etc. from the last 
fiscal year.  
 
OLD BUSINESS—to be discussed after Visitors’ Comments 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
Russ will be attending the Live and Learn in Troy Open House on Sunday, October 14, 
and will have a table of library and Friends information. The Volunteer Appreciation 
Event is Sunday, October 21. Russ updated the members about the Macy’s Museum 
Pass program, which begins on Thursday, October 25.  The restrooms are still under 
renovation.  
 
Board Members’ Comments 
Some members of the LAB were disappointed that Mayor Louise Schilling did not attend 
the Special Needs Collection Open House/Ribbon Cutting.  
 
Student Representatives’ Comments—none  
 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative--Gregory 
The SLC board approved the SLC Plan of Service, the amended SLC bylaws, SLC 
board bylaws, and SLC’s Annual Plan, at their last meeting. The SLC board also 
discussed and made changes to the SLC staff salary schedule. The SLC board 
discussed the budget. Gregory reviewed the membership of the SLC board with the 
members of the TPL Library Advisory Board.  



 3 

 
Friends of the Troy Public Library 
The next Friends board meeting is Monday, November 12, at 9:30 a.m. 
 
Gifts. 
None. 
 
Informational Items. 
October TPL Calendar. 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
26 written comments from the public were reviewed.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A.  Update—Needs Assessment/Feasibility Study 
The Board members discussed the needs assessment portion of the feasibility study. 
The consultants will meet with the LAB members on Wednesday, October 24, at 9:30 
a.m. Russ will ask the consultants to come to a future library board meeting to discuss 
progress on the study.  
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 9:20 P.M. 
 
The next meeting is scheduled for November 15, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. Topics to include on 
the agenda are a statistics discussion (please send questions to C. Russ in advance), 
and a tour of the library to show what is new.  
 

 
 
 

      _____________________________________ 
Kul Gauri 
Chairman 
 
 

Cathleen Russ 
Recording Secretary 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        OCTOBER 16, 2007 

1 
 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, October 16, 2007, in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael W. Bartnik 
    Glenn Clark 
    Kenneth Courtney 
    Marcia Gies 
    Matthew Kovacs 
    Mark Maxwell 
    Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 18, 2007 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of September 18, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All - 7  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. DERRICK ROBINSON, 4472 
LANCASHIRE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure on the rear of 
their home that has a proposed 21’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.04 of the 
Ordinance requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1C Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a patio enclosure on the rear of their home.  The site plan submitted indicates the 
addition on the rear of the home will result in a 21’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.04 
of the Ordinance requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1C Zoning Districts. 
 
This item last appeared at the meeting of September 18, 2007 and was postponed to 
allow the petitioner the opportunity to bring in exact plans of what they want to 
construct.  Mr. Stimac further explained that the petitioner was presenting two plans to 
the Board, one which would result in a 25’-6” rear yard setback and would result with 
the size of the enclosure 31’ x 13’; the other would result in a 29’ rear yard setback and 
the room would be 18’ x 11’. 
 
Mr. McMahon was present and discussed the two (2) plans that he had submitted to the 
Board members.  The homeowner’s first choice was the larger room that would result in  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        OCTOBER 16, 2007 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
a 25’-6” rear yard setback.  If the room was moved farther east the pedestrian garage 
door would not be able to be used and Mr. McMahon feels that the proposed location 
would be the best solution for this proposed patio enclosure. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the plan was for the existing deck. 
 
Mr. McMahon said that the deck was in pretty rough shape and they would remove it 
and create a stamped concrete patio. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what was on the property to the north. 
 
Mr. McMahon said originally he thought there were wetlands located on that lot and 
therefore was unbuildable. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that there is a house facing John R. on the lot to the north and a 
county drain is located in this area.  This site is in a flood plain and therefore 
unbuildable. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr.  & Mrs. Derrick Robinson, 4472 Lancashire, relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure on the rear of their home that will result in a 
25’-6” rear yard setback where Section 30.10.04 of the Ordinance requires a 40’ 
minimum rear yard setback in R-1C Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Irregular shape of lot creates a hardship. 
• Property to the north is unbuildable and will not be affected. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the property in 

question and is unnecessarily burdensome. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        OCTOBER 16, 2007 

3 
 

ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  COY CONSTRUCTION, REPRESENTING MR. & 
MRS. MICHAEL TAORMINO, 1874 WYNGATE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a rear porch enclosure that will result in a 43’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 
requires a 45’ rear yard setback for buildings in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a rear porch enclosure that will result in a 43’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 
requires a 45’ rear yard setback for buildings in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of September 18, 2007 and 
was postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
Mr. Michael Coy of Coy Construction and Mr. Michael Taormino, the homeowner, were 
present.  Mr. Coy explained that the homeowner had been before this Board earlier this 
year and was denied a variance as the proposed patio enclosure at that time required a 
very large variance.  Mr. Coy stated that they had moved the patio enclosure farther 
east and now require a very minimal variance to construct this room. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how large the proposed room would be. 
 
Mr. Coy stated that it would be 12’ x 15’ room and they will be able to construct it in 
such a way that it will appear to have been built at the same time the home was 
constructed.  They plan to put in a deck and that will extend past the edge of the 
enclosed structure. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he is very concerned as this is a new subdivision and when 
looking down the line of homes they all have 45’ setbacks.  The whole row of homes on 
this street, backs up to the wetlands.  The Zoning laws were put in place for a reason 
and Mr. Bartnik feels that to ask for a variance at such an early time could be precedent 
setting. 
 
Mr. Taormino stated that many of the homes on either side of him already have 
concrete patios with walls around them. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if they were enclosed and Mr. Taormino stated that they were not. 
 
Mr. Coy stated that none of these homes have enclosed rooms on them and doesn’t 
think the other homeowners would want to change their existing patios by adding 
enclosures.   
 
Mr. Bartnik asked when the home was built.  
 
Mr. Taormino stated that it was constructed in December 2005. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that the plans presented were beautiful but he is still concerned that 
approval of this request would be precedent setting. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        OCTOBER 16, 2007 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he did not think this was a very large variance request as it is 
only for 2’. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that this request was denied in February of this year by a vote of 5 -
2.  
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he believes this request is quite different from the request 
presented in February. 
 
Mr. Coy stated that they moved the room over so that instead of a 10’ variance request 
it is now a 2’ variance request. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that he had determined that this request was substantially 
different from the earlier request and this is the reason that it was brought before the 
Board at this time. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated in February it was determined that the petitioner did not 
demonstrate a hardship that ran with the land, and that the variance request could be 
precedent setting. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that the reason he had denied the original request was because he 
felt that the room could have been moved over at that time and a lesser variance 
required. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Coy Construction, representing Mr.  & Mrs. Michael Taormino, 1874 
Wyngate, relief of the Ordinance to construct a rear porch enclosure that will result in a 
43’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ rear yard setback for 
buildings in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 

• Variance request is minimal. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the property in 

question and is unnecessarily burdensome. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        OCTOBER 16, 2007 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he still believes that this request could be precedent setting and 
will open the door for other homes in the area to ask for variances and there is no 
hardship that runs with the land. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that each case is heard on its own merit and doesn’t think this would 
set a precedent. 
 
Mr. Bartnik agreed with Mr. Maxwell, but stated that this is a new subdivision and all of 
the lots along Wyngate back up to wetlands.  Mr. Bartnik believes that this Board needs 
to look at the impact on the surrounding property. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Gies 
Nays:  2 – Bartnik, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  LINDA CARDINALE, 2652 RONALD, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct a sunroom on the rear of an existing home.  The proposed 
sunroom would result in a 38.3’ rear yard setback and would increase the percentage of 
lot area covered by buildings from an existing 28.4% to a proposed 30.4%.  Section 
30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1D Zoning District and 
limits the maximum percentage of lot area covered by building to 30%. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a sunroom on the rear of an existing home.  The proposed sunroom would result in a 
38.3’ rear yard setback and would increase the percentage of lot area covered by 
buildings from an existing 28.4% to a proposed 30.4%.  Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ 
minimum rear yard setback in the R-1D Zoning District and limits the maximum 
percentage of lot area covered by building to not more than 30%. 
 
Mr. Michael Selden was present and stated the only portion of this sunroom that would 
encroach into the rear yard setback was the bay on the back.  Mr. Selden stated that 
they have lived in this home for twelve and one-half years and their family dynamics 
have changed.  They have very small children and it is very difficult to watch them in the 
yard from inside the house.  This sunroom would allow them to keep an eye on the kids 
from the inside of the home.  Mr. Selden stated that they had spoken to the neighbors 
on either side of them and they have indicated approval. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        OCTOBER 16, 2007 

6 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Linda Cardinale, 2652 Ronald, relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
sunroom on the rear of an existing home that will result in a 38-3’ rear yard setback and 
would increase the percentage of lot area covered by buildings from an existing 28.4% 
to a proposed 30.4%.  Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the 
R-1D Zoning District and limits the maximum percentage of lot area covered by 
buildings to 30%. 
 

• Variance request is extremely small. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DENNIS BOSTICK, 1881 E. BIG BEAVER 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to alter a tenant space for a new 
restaurant resulting in a parking requirements of 1,310 parking spaces per Sections 
40.21.30 and 40.21.40 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance where only 1,179 parking spaces 
are available. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to alter a 
tenant space for a new Buffalo Wild Wings Restaurant.  This site is located at the 
northwest corner of John R. and Big Beaver.  With the inclusion of the new restaurant 
with 293 seats a total of 1,310 parking spaces would be required for the entire 
development, by Section 40.21.30 and 40.21.40 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance.  The site 
plans submitted indicate that only 1,179 parking spaces are available on the combined 
sites. 
 
Mr. Dennis Bostick was present and stated that they are asking for a variance of 131 
parking spaces.  They are planning to alter the former Hollywood Video space.  The 
shopping center has never exceeded 80% of the parking lot being used.  Mr. Bostick 
passed pictures out to the Board members taken at different times of the day indicating 
the amount of parking used.  The parking lot is usually at a 30% - 40% of its capacity. 
 
Mr. Maxwell has been by the area many times and has never seen the parking lot full. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if parking was a problem during hockey games. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        OCTOBER 16, 2007 

7 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bostick stated that during hockey games the west side of the lot fills up.  The retail 
stores close early and usually there is abundant parking available.  
 
Mr. Clark stated that he lives very close to this shopping center and is very familiar with 
this development.  In the evenings most of the retail stores are closed and traffic is 
greatly diminished.  Mr. Clark also stated that during sports events he has noted that the 
west end of the parking lot fills up. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Clark 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Dennis Bostick, 1881 E. Big Beaver, relief of the Ordinance to alter a 
tenant space for a new restaurant resulting in 1,179 parking spaces available, where 
Sections 40.21.30 and 40.21.40 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance required 1,310 parking 
spaces. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SOMERSET PONTIAC GMC TRUCK, INC., 1728 
MAPLELAWN, for relief of the required 6’ high masonry obscuring wall at the north 
property line where the site abuts residential zoned property per Section 39.10.01 of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting Special Use Approval for the 
Outdoor Storage of Vehicles per Section 28.30.04 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance.  This 
property is located in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District.  The property 
immediately to the north is located in the R-M1 (Multiple-Family Residential) Zoning 
District.  Section 39.10.01 of the Zoning Ordinance requires that a 6’ high masonry 
obscuring wall be located at the north property line of the site where it abuts 
residentially zoned property.  The petitioner does not indicate the required wall on plans 
submitted. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        OCTOBER 16, 2007 

8 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Charles LeFevre and Mr. Jack Fowler were present.  Mr. LeFevre stated that they 
want to be able to use this area for the overflow of vehicle storage.  They have an 
existing facility that they are presently using and this area would only be for the 
overflow.  This property would only be used one or two months out of the year.   
 
Mr. LeFevre stated that besides the very thick vegetation there is an existing fence 
running along the north property line.  The trees overlap the parking structure on the 
north side of the property.  Mr. LeFevre also stated that this area was developed in the 
early 1970’s and if they are forced to put a barrier in they will have to destroy at least 
half of the existing vegetation.  The only section they are planning to use for storage has 
a gravel base and be believes that the vegetation barrier is approximately 25’ to 35’.  
The largest build up of inventory is March or April.  The only other time they may have 
to use this area for storage would be during the model changeover in the summer 
months. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if they were planning to add asphalt to this area. 
 
Mr. LeFevre said that they are not planning to at this time and they do not want to 
change the existing structure. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that Somerset Apartments are located from Crooks to Coolidge and 
he does not believe there is a lot of area that does not have a screening wall. 
 
Mr. LeFevre stated that Maplelawn curves. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what type of lighting would be on the site. 
 
Mr. Fowler stated that they will have security lights; however he does not believe they 
would cause the neighboring property any problems. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the owners and residents of the Somerset Park Apartments had 
been notified of this request. 
 
Mr. Stimac replied that both owners and residents within 300’ of the subject property 
were notified. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Clark 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        OCTOBER 16, 2007 

9 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Somerset Pontiac GMC Truck, Inc., 1728 Maplelawn, a one-year 
variance for relief of the required 6’ high masonry obscuring wall at the north property 
line where the site abuts residential zoned property per Section 39.10.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

• One-year will allow the Board to re-visit this request to determine that a screen 
wall is not required. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not cause an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:28 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 23, 2007 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:31 p.m. on October 23, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin Thomas Strat 
Robert M. Schultz John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-10-159 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman, Strat and Tagle are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-10-160 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 23, 2007 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-10-161 
 
Moved by: Wright  
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 2, 2007 Special/Study meeting 
and the October 9, 2007 Regular meeting as distributed. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Wright gave a brief report on the October 16, 2007 Board of Zoning Appeals 
meeting. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported that there was no October DDA meeting. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following: 
 

 PUD-9 (“The Pavilions”) received Concept Development Plan (CDP) 
approval from City Council on October 15, 2007. 

 Adams Road Site Condominium received Preliminary Approval from City 
Council on October 15, 2007. 

 Timbercrest Farms Site Condominium received Final Approval from City 
Council on October 1, 2007. 

 ZOTA 230, pertaining to wireless communication towers at school sites and 
parks, was postponed to provide the Parks and Recreation Board an 
opportunity for input.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 23, 2007 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 
8. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN – LAND PATTERNS:  FUTURE LAND USE 

 
Mr. Miller introduced Zak Branigan of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  Mr. 
Branigan presented Chapter 9, Land Patterns: Future Land Use.   
 
General discussion followed. 
 
It was determined that the Existing Land Use section would be removed from 
Chapter 9 and added to the Appendix.  Further, the Implementation chapter would 
be rolled into the Future Land Use chapter. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Troshynski complimented the City on its tree planting program implemented 
throughout the City.  She also complimented the Open House program organized 
by the City. 
 
Mr. Hutson commented on correspondence all Planning Commissioners received 
from T-Mobile, requesting to meet individually with Planning Commissioners.  He 
indicated that meeting individually with a potential applicant is inappropriate. 
 
Chair Schultz presented a copy of the City of St. Louis Master Plan, which is printed 
on one large piece of paper and includes photographs of the type of redevelopment 
desired in the City. 

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 23, 2007 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\10-23-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 

 

 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 7, 2007 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, November 7, 2007 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF OCTOBER 24, 2007 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of October 24, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All - 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SIGNGRAPHIX, 900 TOWER, for relief of Chapter 
85 to erect two (2) wall signs. 
 
Mr. Evans stated that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect two (2) 
wall signs.  Chapter 85.02.05 allows one wall sign for each building, not to exceed a 
maximum of 200 square feet in area.  The plans submitted indicate a total of two (2) 
wall signs, each measuring 324 square feet in area. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at a Special Meeting of October 24, 2007 and 
was postponed to allow the petitioners the opportunity to present the Board members 
with the data from the University of Pennsylvania study; and, to allow the Building 
Department to recalculate the area of the signs as presented by Signgraphix. 
 
Mr. Evans explained that Building Department staff had recalculated the area of signs 
as presented and determined that each sign would be 209 square feet.  The two 
existing signs on this building are calculated as 130 square feet each. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked about the results of the University of Pennsylvania study, which 
was mentioned by the petitioner at the last meeting. 
 
Mr. Keith Murray was present and gave each Board member a handout, which included 
excerpts from this study.  Mr. Murray stated that they had broken it down in easier terms  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 7, 2007 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
so it would be understood by the Board members.  Mr. Murray further stated that this 
study is based on speed and reaction time, and said this study is very subjective.  Mr. 
Murray had taken pictures of the existing signage showing the approximate distance 
from I-75. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that in the picture presented to Board members, the building itself 
was quite fuzzy.  Mr. Kessler also stated that he does not have a problem identifying 
this building with the existing signs.  Furthermore, according to the documents 
submitted to the Board, visibility was based on vehicles traveling 75 miles per hour and 
the speed limit on I-75 is actually 70 miles per hour. 
 
Mr. Murray said that although he understood that, the study by the University of 
Pennsylvania was done based on a speed of 75 miles per hour.  Mr. Murray also stated 
that based on the position of the building, the first time you would see the sign was 
when you were trying to get off the expressway.  Mr. Murray said that he had driven the 
expressway in both directions a number of times and took the picture at the best 
location for visibility of the existing sign.  The study indicates the speed traveled and the 
distance required allowing a person to make a decision to exit the expressway. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if a person would be able to read the sign from the location the photo 
was taken. 
 
Mr. Murray stated that as you get closer you can make out the word “Bank”, but it is 
difficult to see from a distance. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that although he wears glasses, he did not believe it was difficult to 
see the existing sign.  Mr. Kessler also stated that he does not believe the proposed 
height of the signs is necessary. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he believes the proposed signs would be more in keeping with 
advertising rather than directional signs.  Mr. Dziurman also stated that there a lot of 
buildings in the area that do not have signs that are this size and agrees with Mr. 
Kessler that the proposed size of these signs is too large. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the height was of the existing signs. 
 
Mr. Evans stated that they are 50” in height and the “Bank” sign extends 2’ below the 
name sign.  The logo measures 74 ½” from top to bottom. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 7, 2007 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Signgraphix, 900 Tower, for relief of Chapter 85 to 
erect two (2) wall signs where Chapter 85.02.05 allows one wall sign for each building 
not to exceed 200 square feet in area. 
 

• Height of the signs will not exceed 5’. 
• Additional height of the proposed sign will increase visibility based on vehicle 

speed and line of sight. 
• Variance would not be contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  RON FLOYD, VALEO, INC., 150 STEPHENSON, 
relief of Chapter 85 to erect four (4) wall signs totaling 396.4 square feet. 
 
Mr. Evans explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect four (4) 
wall signs totaling 396.4 square feet.  Chapter 85.02.05 limits the number of signs to 
one wall sign for each building, a maximum of 200 square feet in area. 
 
Mr. Evans stated that the Building Department had recalculated the wall signage as 
presented by Johnson Sign Company and the north and south signs would be 66 
square feet each, and the signs on the east and west elevations would be 88.17 square 
feet each. 
 
Mr. Larry Lyng, Manager of Valeo was present and stated that they are asking for these 
signs in order to increase visibility of this building.  The building has frontage along 
Stephenson, Fourteen Mile and I-75.  They are proposing relatively small signs and 
believe they will aid customers, suppliers and other visitors in locating the building.  Mr. 
Lyng went on to say that they do not want to put up any signs that would be considered 
gaudy.  This is a large company and the signage would be in keeping with the signs 
utilized by both Behr America and Delphi. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if these signs would be illuminated. 
 
Mr. Lyng stated that they had not decided at this point whether they would use a 
spotlight or some other type of illumination.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked why the petitioner needed four (4) signs. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 7, 2007 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Lyng stated that it was because of the direction of the building.  This building 
straddles thoroughfares and if traveling north on I-75 it is not visible until you are just 
about on top of it.  This same condition also applies to vehicles traveling on 
Stephenson. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the ground sign would have the name of the company on it. 
 
Mr. Lyng stated it is very small and only has the address on it. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if there were other occupants in the building. 
 
Mr. Lyng stated that their company is the only occupant in the building. 
 
Mr. Jay Johnson of Johnson Sign Company was present and stated that they are 
proposing to put up small readable signs on the building.  The petitioner could put up a 
10’ x 20’ sign on the corner of the building, but the signs they are proposing would be 
smaller.  They are hoping to get away from putting up a large ground sign. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what type of sign the petitioner was planning to put near the 
entranceway of the building. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that according to the Ordinance as long as they put up a sign, that 
was less than 36 square feet, and not visible from any adjacent right of way, a permit 
was not required. 
 
Mr. Evans confirmed that was correct. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the signs would be considered one sign if they were wrapped 
around the building. 
 
Mr. Evans stated that if they butt up next to each other they would be considered one 
sign. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the checkmark was part of the sign. 
 
Mr. Evans confirmed that it was. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked what would happen if another tenant moved into this location. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 7, 2007 

5 
 

 
ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Evans stated that for each building one ground sign is allowed and an additional 
ground sign is allowed as long as it does not exceed 36 square feet. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to grant Ron Floyd, Valeo, Inc., 150 Stephenson, relief of Chapter 85 to erect 
four (4) wall signs totaling 396.4 square feet where Chapter 85.02.05 limits the number 
of signs to one wall sign per building, with a maximum of 200 square feet in area. 
 

• These signs will take the place of any other monument sign. 
• Any ground sign that would normally require a sign permit would not be allowed. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SIGNS & MORE, 4415 LANCASHIRE, for relief of 
Chapter 85 to erect a ground sign for a subdivision entrance. 
 
Mr. Evans explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 
ground sign for a subdivision entrance at the property at the northeast corner of the 
intersection of Cumberland and John R.  Table 85.02.05 requires a minimum setback of 
10’ from the street right of way lines.  The site plan submitted indicates a 2.5’ setback 
from the John R. Road right of way and a 4.33’ setback from the Cumberland right of 
way.  At a 30” height the sign does comply with the corner clearance requirements of 
Section 7.01.02. 
 
Mr. Dziurman indicated that he would not be voting on this request as he is a resident of 
Mt. Vernon estates Subdivision. 
 
Ms. Molly Smith of Signs & More was present.  Ms. Smith stated that this is a very old 
subdivision and has approximately 400 homes in it.  The original sign was put in before 
the Ordinance was established.  There are four (4) entrances to this subdivision, and 
three (3) sign permits have been reviewed by the Building Department and now will go 
before City Council for approval.  This item is before this Board as the proposed setback 
does not meet the required 10’ setback.  If they conformed to the 10’ setback, the sign 
would be in the homeowner’s fence line.  Visibility would also be questionable.  The 
existing brick pillars will be taken down, the landscaping re-planted and the proposed 
sign would be 30” in height. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked how far the existing sign was from the right of way. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 7, 2007 

6 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Charles Folkerts, 4290 Washington Crescent was present and he stated that in his 
opinion it was probably at the right of way line.  There is approximately 1’ between the 
existing sign and sidewalk and the proposed sign would be moved an additional 1 ½’ 
back. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked how high a fence would be allowed in this area. 
 
Mr. Evans stated that this sign would not be any taller than what is allowed for a fence 
located in a front setback. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked what was behind the fence. 
 
Mr. Folkerts stated that it is a private yard and this sign will be put on property owned by 
the homeowner.  The existing landscaping will be replanted. 
 
Ms. Smith stated that the sign will parallel the street to increase visibility. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the homeowner was in favor of this request. 
 
Mr. Roland Eagle, the homeowner at 4415 Lancashire, was present and stated that he 
agrees with this proposal 100%. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Signs & More, 4415 Lancashire, relief of Chapter 85 to erect a ground 
sign for a subdivision entrance that the located 2.5’ from the John R. Road right of way 
and 4.33’ setback from the Cumberland right of way, where Table 85.02.05 requires a 
minimum setback of 10’ from the street right of way lines. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• The existing brick pillars will be removed as stated by the applicant. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Kessler, Nelson, Richnak, Zuazo 
Abstain: 1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he thought the new sign will be an improvement to this area. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 7, 2007 

7 
 

The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:10 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 12, 2007  

 Page 1 of 6 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
November 12, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 
West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 
6:55 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of September 17, 2007 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2007-11-022 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the September 17, 2007 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: None 
 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 12, 2007  

 Page 2 of 6 

Agenda Items 
 
 
 
1. Konja 1, Inc, 5945 John R, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County requests 

transfer ownership of 2007 SDD and SDM licensed business from Troy 
Paradise, Inc. {MLCC Request #429800}  

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Danial Konja and Louay 
Joulakh.  Mr. Konja is purchasing this business from Mr. Joulakh.  Mr. Konja has 
owned a similar business in Highland Park for over 13 years.  Mr. Konja will attend 
TIPS/TAMS training, as will any future employees.   
 
Sgt. Cantlon stated that his background investigation revealed no disqualifying 
factors. 
 
Resolution #LC2007-11-023 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that Konja 1, Inc, 5945 John R, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County be 
allowed to transfer ownership of 2007 SDD and SDM licensed business from Troy 
Paradise, Inc. 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: None 
 
 

 
 
2. Capital Grille Holdings, Inc. requests to transfer ownership through 

merger of 2007 Class C licensed business with official permit (food) located 
at Somerset Collection North, 2800 W. Big Beaver, space #Q 123, Troy, MI 
48084, Oakland County, from the Capital Grille of Troy, Inc.; requests a 
new SDM license to be held in conjunction; and requests to add space.  
{MLCC Request #62150}  

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Kelly Allen, attorney for 
Capital Grille Holdings, Inc.  Ms. Allen stated this is a merger issue that has been 
held up at the MLCC for approximately three years.  She also advised the 
Committee of the space that has been added to the restaurant.  Capital Grille 
Holdings is also requesting an SDM license to enable them to sell wine for off-
premise consumption. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 12, 2007  

 Page 3 of 6 

 
Sgt. Cantlon advised the Committee that Capital Grille has had only one violation 
(2001) since they opened for business.  He confirmed the paperwork processing 
problems with an investigator at the MLCC.   The delay was not the fault of the 
licensee  
 
Resolution #LC2007-11-024 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that Capital Grille Holdings, Inc. be allowed to transfer ownership 
through merger of 2007 Class C licensed business with official permit (food) 
located at Somerset Collection North, 2800 W. Big Beaver, space #Q 123, Troy, 
MI 48084, Oakland County, from the Capital Grille of Troy, Inc.; requests a new 
SDM license to be held in conjunction; and requests to add space. 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: None 
 
 

 
 
3. TKE Restaurants, Inc. requests to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C 

licensed business located in escrow at 1811 E. Ten Mile, Madison Heights, 
MI 48071, Oakland County, from Daily Double Lounge, Inc.: transfer 
location (governmental unit) (MLC 436.1531(1) to 1686 John R, Troy, MI 
48084, Oakland County and requests a new Official Permit (Food). {MLCC 
Request #430628}  

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Kelly Allen, attorney, and 
Ted Evans, owner.  Ms. Allen advised the Committee that Mr. Evans has leased 
the former Hooters location, has purchased a liquor license from a bar in Madison 
Heights, and will open a franchised restaurant called Rib City Grill.  Rib City Grill 
has a strong training program and Mr. Evans will also attend the TIPS training.  
Approximately 50 employees will be hired.  The restaurant will have 150 seats and 
has ample parking.   
 
Sgt. Cantlon stated that his background investigation revealed no disqualifying 
factors.   
 
Resolution #LC2007-11-025 
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 12, 2007  

 Page 4 of 6 

RESOLVED, that TKE Restaurants, Inc. be allowed to transfer ownership of 2007 
Class C licensed business located in escrow at 1811 E. Ten Mile, Madison 
Heights, MI 48071, Oakland County, from Daily Double Lounge, Inc.: transfer 
location (governmental unit) (MLC 436.1531(1) to 1686 John R, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County and requests a new Official Permit (Food).  
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: None 
 
 

 
 
4. Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc. (A Georgia Corporation) and 

RBHV Troy, LLC (A Delaware Limited Liability Company) (Co-
Licensees) request to transfer ownership of 2007 B-Hotel licensed 
business with Dance Permit, Official Permit (Food), Outdoor Service (1 
Area), Direct Connection-1, 3 bars, and 251 rooms, located at 850 Tower, 
Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County, from DJONT/JPM Troy Leasing, LLC. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company); Felcor/JPM Troy Hotel, LLC (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company) and Promus Hotels, Inc. A Delaware 
Corporation (Co-Licensees). {MLCC Request #426097} 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were John Carlin, attorney,  and 
James Miskulin.  This is a transfer of ownership and management of the Embassy 
Suites Hotel.  Mr. Miskulin advised the Committee that Hospitality Ventures 
Management operates specifically under Hilton and Marriott franchised hotels.  
This location will undergo major cosmetic renovations beginning in December.   
 
Sgt. Cantlon stated that his background investigation revealed no disqualifying 
factors.   
 
Resolution #LC2007-11-026 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc. (A Georgia Corporation) 
and RBHV Troy, LLC (A Delaware Limited Liability Company) (Co-Licensees) be 
allowed to transfer ownership of 2007 B-Hotel licensed business with Dance 
Permit, Official Permit (Food), Outdoor Service (1 Area), Direct Connection-1, 3 
bars, and 251 rooms, located at 850 Tower, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County, 
from DJONT/JPM Troy Leasing, LLC. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company); 
Felcor/JPM Troy Hotel, LLC (A Delaware Limited Liability Company) and Promus 
Hotels, Inc. A Delaware Corporation (Co-Licensees).  
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 12, 2007  

 Page 5 of 6 

Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: None 
 
 

 
 
5. Hospitality Wal-Mart Stores East, Limited partnership requests new SDM 

license with 2 new Direct Connections to be located at 2001 W Maple, Troy, 
MI 48084, Oakland County. (Public Chain) {MLCC Request #431440} 
 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Sandra Cotter, attorney, 
Nicole Chase, store manager, and Diane Behnke, market manager.  Ms. Cotter 
explained that Wal-Mart is requesting an SDM license in order to sell self-serve 
beer and wine from their grocery department.  Wal-Mart has an extensive 
computer-based learning module that will train all cashiers and managers.  Also, 
the cash registers are programmed to allow only those transactions with a legal 
birth date of the purchaser, legal day of week/time of day, and will prohibit sales by 
underage employees. 
 
Sgt. Cantlon stated that his background investigation revealed no disqualifying 
factors.  Also, he has reviewed the computer-based learning module that will be 
used for training and agrees that it meets the City’s requirements.   
 
Resolution #LC2007-11-027 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, Wal-Mart Stores East, Limited partnership be granted new SDM 
license with 2 new Direct Connections to be located at 2001 W Maple, Troy, MI 
48084, Oakland County. (Public Chain)  
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0  
Absent: None 
 
 

 
 
The Committee discussed the informational items on the agenda, as well as the 
recent sale-to-minor violations. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 12, 2007  

 Page 6 of 6 

The meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on November 13, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael W. Hutson 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Chair Schultz announced that eight members are serving the Commission until a 
replacement is appointed for the vacancy of Mary Kerwin, who was elected to City 
Council.  Chair Schultz thanked Ms. Kerwin for her participation and wished her 
well. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-162 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Tagle, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

2 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-163 
 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 23, 2007 Special/Study 
meeting as printed.   
 
Yes:  Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
Abstain:  Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
POSTPONED ITEM 

 
5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 898-B) – Proposed Mausoleum, White Chapel Cemetery, 

South side of Long Lake Road, between Crooks and I-75 (621 W. Long Lake Road), 
Section 16, Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a review of the postponed item.  He addressed memoranda 
from the Building Department relating to code enforcement violations.  The Building 
Department reported the violations are corrected.  Further, the Building Department 
determined that the fence along Long Lake Road is not in violation of the Zoning 
Ordinance because it pre-dates the fence ordinance.  Mr. Savidant reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the site plan as submitted with the 
condition that the petitioner receives variances from the Board of Zoning Appeals 
and the Board of Building Appeals, as relates to the required 50-foot setback and 
construction of walls higher than 30 inches within the required setback. 
 
There was discussion on: 

 Principal structure of the business. 

 Existing fence and new vinyl fence as relates to the Zoning Ordinance. 

 Tree preservation and tree inventory waivers. 
 
Dennis Cowan of Plunkett & Cooney, 38505 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Also present were David Krall, Vice 
President and corporate counsel for White Chapel; Don Root, architect, Integrated 
Design Solutions, 888 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy; and Marc Russell, landscape 
architect, Russell Design, 114 Rayson Street, Northville.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

3 
 

Mr. Cowan addressed the corrected code violations and the interior fences, which 
he indicated are not regulated within site plan approval.  Mr. Cowan respectfully 
requested approval of the site plan with the condition to obtain variances from both 
the Board of Zoning Appeals and the Building Code Board of Appeals.   
 
There was discussion on the following:   

 Demolition of vehicle storage and maintenance building in a future phase. 

 Design and material of sound wall; involvement of Michigan Department of 
Transportation (MDOT). 

 Elevations of sound wall in relation to principal structure. 

 Retention pond as relates to size, configuration and adequacy. 

 Existing fence along Long Lake Road, its screening and compliance to Zoning 
Ordinance requirements.  

 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
There was lengthy discussion on the preliminary site plan as relates to the 
designations of interior walls, fences, material, and key elements such as the water 
feature, and the purview of the Planning Commission for site plan approval.   
 
Mr. Miller stated the Planning Commission has the discretion to determine whether 
the preliminary elevations are sufficient to determine site plan approval, and they 
could require the petitioner to submit additional information should they deem it 
necessary to reach a determination.   
 
Several members shared difficulty in reading the landscape plan and correlating 
detail sheets and keynotes.  
 
Mr. Root provided a detailed description of the site plan design.  
 
Mr. Russell discussed the landscape plan in detail and offered clarifications to 
specific questions posed by the members.  He apologized for the confusion and the 
lack of correlation between the plan’s keynotes and detail sheets.  
 
Mr. Krall provided an explanation of the demolition designations.  Their intent is to 
show how the site plan would correlate to the City’s future Master Plan.  He 
indicated future phases would come before the Planning Commission for site plan 
approval. 
 
Mr. Strat commended the petitioner on the excellent quality of design and quality of 
the site plan application.  Mr. Strat expressed dissatisfaction with the plastic 
covering on the existing fence.  He believes the fence is a code violation, stating 
additional materials were applied to an existing structure.  Mr. Strat asked that staff 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

4 
 

look into the matter and prepare a report on the compliance of a structure that is in 
violation of setback requirements, and to which modifications have been made. 
 
There was clarification that preliminary approval of a site plan is valid for a period of 
one year. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-164 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed White Chapel Cemetery Mausoleum, located on 
the south side of Long Lake Road, between Crooks Road and I-75 (621 W. Long 
Lake Road), located in Section 16, on approximately 205 acres in area, within the 
R-1B zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Obtaining all required variances from the Building Code Board of Appeals and 

the Board of Zoning Appeals.  
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
No: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said the site plan drawings are incomplete, and it shows a lack of 
responsibility on the part of the Commission to approve it as submitted.  He also 
stated that the violations on the site plan should be brought up to date. 
 
Mr. Strat said the design is excellent but the plan has flaws as relates to the front 
screen wall and the modifications made within the last few months. 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 729) – Proposed Rite Aid 

Pharmacy Development, North side of Long Lake, East side of Rochester Road, 
Section 11 – B-1 (Local Business) District to B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request.  Mr. Savidant announced that a letter of opposition 
was distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   
 
Ms. Troshynski asked which direction the store would face.  
 
Chair Schultz asked the Assistant City Attorney to address discussion of site plan 
issues at the time a rezoning request is considered.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

5 
 

Ms. Lancaster said members are not to consider site plan issues during the 
approval process of a rezoning request, but consideration should be given to all 
applicable uses in a specific zoning district.  She indicated the developer would not 
be bound by any commitments made relating to the site plan.   
 
The petitioner was present.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-165 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on the north side of Long Lake Road, 
east of Rochester Road, within Section 11, being approximately 1.35 acres in size, 
be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

7. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 
units/lots proposed, East side of Evanswood, North of Square Lake, Section 1, 
Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site condominium.  He announced that a letter of opposition was 
distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Savidant 
reported City Management recommends approval of the alternative version of the 
preliminary site plan application that proposes 8 units and a 60-foot wide right of 
way terminating into a stub street at the southern property line.   
 
There was discussion on: 

 Setback requirements for side lots and streets in relation to neighboring 
properties. 

 Plan and alternative plan meet all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 Stub street with respect to traffic and turning radius.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

6 
 

 Neighborhood interconnectivity.  The Planning Department prefers 
interconnectivity because it is better planning for future development. 

 
Carol Thurber of Fazal Khan & Associates, 43279 Schoenherr, Sterling Heights, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Ms. Thurber said a cul de sac would 
provide a quiet community; a stub street provides interconnectivity but promotes 
more traffic.  Ms. Thurber said they did not consider a layout where the street would 
be on the south side of the property, and confirmed that the lots to the south are not 
developed. 
 
Mr. Vleck said he has a hard time approving a development that proposes to place 
a sidewalk and street directly abutting existing residential.  He said it would be a 
detriment to the existing resident.  Mr. Vleck addressed the water run-off and 
drainage for the proposed elevations. 
 
Chair Schultz pointed out that the existing house to the north would become a 
double front (a corner lot) with the proposed street layout.  
 

Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Cathy Carolan of 6322 Evanswood, Troy, was present.  Ms. Carolan spoke in 
opposition of the proposed development.  She indicated their property would be the 
one that would turn into a corner lot.  Ms. Carolan voiced concerns with the close 
proximity of the street and sidewalk, density, neighborhood compatibility and drainage.   
 
Chair Schultz explained the subject property is zoned R-1D, and though the existing 
development of the neighborhood might be at a lower density than what is allowed in 
the R-1D zoning district, the property owner is allowed to develop to the density of the 
underlying zoning.  As an example, he cited if a house sits on one acre but they are 
allowed to put four houses on the one acre, that is the prerogative of the property 
owner.   
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed that is a correct statement.   
 
Mike Carolan of 6322 Evanswood, Troy, was present.  Mr. Carolan spoke in 
opposition of both layouts for the proposed development.  Mr. Carolan said they do 
not want a corner lot.  He addressed potential hardships relating to property values, 
meeting required setbacks on both sides, and the sidewalk directly on the property 
line.  Mr. Carolan indicated he had conversations with the subject developer to buy his 
property and another developer who would build with lesser density.  Mr. Carolan 
voiced concerns with water run-off and flooding, capacity and maintenance of the 
retention pond, and compatibility and aesthetics of existing neighborhood.  He asked 
the Commission to consider tabling the item and to meet with the petitioner to arrive at 
a better layout.  He indicated putting the street to the south where there is no 
development might be a better plan.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

7 
 

Ada Griffith of 2666 Ronald Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Griffith spoke in opposition 
of the proposed development.  Ms. Griffith addressed concerns relating to 
compatibility with the existing neighborhood, traffic, and safety of pedestrians and 
children.  She would like to see the existing natural environment maintained.  Ms. 
Griffith submitted a written email from her husband, in opposition of the proposed 
development that was not forwarded to the Planning Department in time to be 
distributed to the members.   
 
Jean Dylong of 2638 Ronald Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Dylong spoke in 
opposition of the proposed development.  She submitted a petition in opposition of the 
proposed development, signed by 90 residents.  Ms. Dylong addressed density, water 
overflow and drainage, and neighborhood compatibility.   
 
Tim Ritchey of 2678 Ronald Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Ritchey spoke in opposition 
of the development.  He addressed concerns relating to neighborhood compatibility, 
density and property values.  Mr. Ritchey said he personally had a major water 
problem in his basement when the Carolan house was being built.   
 
Chair Schultz provided an explanation of a site condominium development.  He noted 
that the proposed lots would be the same sized lots that are currently on Ronald Drive.  
Chair Schultz said the water problem should be reported to the Engineering 
Department.  
 
Mr. Miller indicated on the map where the R-1D zoning district exists in that area, and 
said the same Zoning Ordinance requirements apply to all those properties, including 
minimum lot size.  He said the proposed development meets those standards, and 
that the property owner is exercising his property rights just as anyone else in that 
zoning district could.  Mr. Miller said the only way to preserve the area from being 
developed as R-1D would be to rezone it to a larger lot size, which would potentially 
reduce property values.   
 
Jane Erickson of 6205 Seminole, Troy, was present.  Ms. Erickson spoke in opposition 
of the proposed development.  She addressed the choppiness and inharmonious 
manner in which infill development has happened in Macomb County, and did not 
expect this of Troy.   
 
Jackie Hepp of 6136 Evanswood, Troy, was present.  Ms. Hepp spoke in opposition of 
the proposed development.  She addressed the existing water problem and 
maintenance of retention ponds.  Ms. Hepp said they have replaced their sump pump 
five times.  
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Comments from the members related to: 

 Hardship to resident whose property would turn into a double front lot. 

 Potential to develop site with the road to the south. 

 Density. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

8 
 

 Drainage and existing water problems. 

 Neighborhood compatibility. 

 Existing natural environment. 

 Potential to waive the required sidewalk to the north in lieu of a landscape buffer. 

 Cul de sac versus stub street. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-166 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That this item be postponed until the petitioner submits a plan that 
incorporates some of the comments made at tonight’s meeting.   
 
Discussion on motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Vleck suggested that the petitioner meet with property owners to the north and 
south to discuss alternative layouts. 
 
Mr. Miller said he has no objection to postponing the item to pursue other layout 
options.  He made it clear to the members that the Planning Commission is 
obligated by State law to recommend approval to a project that meets the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
 
Yes: Littman, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: Hutson, Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson said the developer is entitled to build a site condominium development 
pursuant to the plan, or alternative plan, because both submissions meet all the 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Chair Schultz said the developer has the right to build the development as proposed 
because the application meets all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  He 
indicated he has no objection to the postponement and would discuss the item at a 
future meeting.   
 

___________ 
 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:25 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:35 p.m. 

___________ 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

9 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 849-C) – Grace Christian Learning Center Proposed 
Addition, North side of Big Beaver, East side of John R Road (2051 E. Big Beaver), 
Section 24 – B-1 (Local Business) and P-1 (Vehicular Parking) Districts 
 
Mr. Tagle asked to be excused from discussion and vote on this item because his 
company has a financial interest in the matter.  
 
[Mr. Tagle exited the meeting.] 
 
Chair Schultz advised the petitioner that approval of the item would require five 
affirmative votes, and noted there are only seven members who would be voting. 
 
The petitioner, Rick Howard, indicated he would like to go forward with the approval 
process. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan application.  He brought attention to the proposed exterior 
treatment as relates to Article 39.70.10 of the Zoning Ordinance.  He reported it is 
the recommendation of City Management to approve the site plan as submitted, 
subject to a maximum of 145 children to be cared for and detention to be provided 
on site in a manner approved by the Engineering Department.  
 
The petitioner, Rick Howard of 507 Misty Brook Lane, Rochester Hills, was present.  
Mr. Howard said he was not aware of the Zoning Ordinance requirement relating to 
matching the building façade.  He stated the building material has been purchased.  
 
Mr. Strat assured the petitioner he could preserve the building material purchased 
and add on to match the existing building material.  He addressed the proximity of 
the shopping center and major intersection in terms of improvements.  Mr. Strat 
suggested that (1) the front segment of the closed structure match the existing 
building; and (2) trees and vegetation be provided in front of the cyclone fence to 
buffer the fence and playground area. 
 
Mr. Howard agreed with the suggestions.   
 
Mr. Vleck agreed with Mr. Strat’s suggestions, and asked for a description of the 
screen wall on the north property line.   
 
Mr. Howard provided a history of the parcel in terms of zoning.  He said a screen 
wall would not be required if the area zoned P-1 was rezoned to B-1.   
 
Mr. Miller explained that the City intends to initiate a rezoning request to the B-1 
zoning designation for the P-1 parcel and the DTE parcel.  Mr. Miller said he was 
not sure if a screen wall would be required on the DTE parcel but if it is, 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

10 
 

construction of a screen wall would take place if and when future improvements 
were done to the property.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated the 4’6” high screen wall indicated on the site plan would 
comply with all Zoning Ordinance requirements.  He asked that the record reflect 
that the site plan submitted meets all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. 
Savidant said it was not City Management’s intent to mislead the Planning 
Commission, but to simplify site plan approval.  Mr. Savidant indicated the rezoning 
request would be considered at a future date when it is not tied together with the 
site plan approval process.    
 
Chair Schultz said he could not support the site plan unless the façade is 
compatible with the existing building.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-      
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the Grace Christian Center Proposed Addition until such 
time that the petitioner has the opportunity to design the façade of the proposed 
addition in accordance with our existing Zoning Ordinance requirements that 
require it to match the existing façade with the existing building, and further to 
provide vegetation to screen the cyclone fence. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Howard requested the Commission’s assistance to approve the preliminary site 
plan application at tonight’s meeting so he could go forward with the project.  He 
indicated his willingness to agree to any conditions that the Commission would 
deem applicable.   
 
There was discussion to approve the site plan at a future meeting, or 
administratively.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the matching building façade as relates to residential 
purposes, and noted the subject site is quite a distance from residential.  He said 
the trees that the petitioner is willing to provide would solve the screening problem.  
 
Mr. Strat asked if the petitioner would be receptive to providing a stockade fence in 
lieu of a cyclone fence. 
 
Mr. Howard answered in the affirmative.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

11 
 

Mr. Strat withdrew his support on the motion on the floor, subject to withdrawal from 
the maker of the motion.   
 
Mr. Vleck withdrew the motion on the floor.   
 
MOTION WITHDRAWN 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-167 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Grace Christian Center Proposed Addition, located 
on the north side of Big Beaver, east side of John R Road, located in Section 24, on 
approximately 1.51 acres in area, within the B-1 and P-1 zoning districts, be granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. No increase in the number of children to be cared for, 145 maximum as per 

variance issued on June 17, 2003 by the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
2. Detention to be provided on site in a manner approved by Engineering 

Department. 
3. Building façade facing John R must match the existing façade of the existing 

building subject to approval of the Planning Department. 
4. Stockade fence will replace the cyclone fence surrounding the play area that 

faces John R on all sides. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman said he does not see the need for the petitioner to match the façade all 
the way around because the provision is intended to protect residential properties 
and the site is a long distance from residential. 
 
[Mr. Tagle returned to the meeting.] 
 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 944) – Existing 466 Stephenson Hwy, Proposed Parking 
Lot Expansion, East side of Stephenson Hwy, North of 14 Mile Road, Section 35 – 
R-C (Research Center) and O-M (Office Mid-Rise) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan application as submitted. 
 
Chair Schultz asked if the property acquisition and expansion of parking would 
cause a non-conformity for the parcel that is giving up the property for the parking. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

12 
 

Mr. Savidant replied the parcel would not become a non-conformity.  
 
James West of 7115 Orchard Lake Road, West Bloomfield, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. West indicated the proposed parking expansion and 
interior renovation is simply to create a better marketing appeal for potential 
tenants.  
 
Al Bayer, project engineer, of Nowak & Fraus, was present.  There was a brief 
discussion on the landscape plan and tree inventory. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-168 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Parking Lot Expansion at 466 Stephenson 
Highway, located on the east side of Stephenson Highway, north of 14 Mile Road, 
located in Section 35, on approximately 3.38 acres in area, within the R-C and O-M 
zoning districts, be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Troshynski congratulated Mary Kerwin on her election to City Council, and said 
she will be missed.   
 
Mr. Strat expressed his congratulations to Ms. Kerwin also.  He suggested a 
discussion on the City’s fence ordinance at a future study meeting.  Mr. Strat 
addressed a checklist of requirements for site plan approval and the submission of 
proposed site plans for rezoning requests.  
 
Mr. Wright congratulated Ms. Kerwin on winning her City Council seat, and said he 
will miss her.   
 
Ms. Lancaster wished everyone a very safe and happy Thanksgiving.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

13 
 

Mr. Miller challenged the members to take a critical look at the proposed combined 
chapters of the Master Plan, the Future Land Use Plan and Urban Design Plan that 
will be discussed at the November 27 Special/Study meeting.  He wished a good 
Thanksgiving to everyone. 
 
Chair Schultz said he hopes to find a way to address the inordinate number of 
problems that appeared on paperwork submitted on some agenda items this 
evening.  He said he will miss his former Vice Chair, Ms. Kerwin, and wished her 
well on City Council. 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\11-13-07 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Draft November 14, 2007 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, November 14, 2007, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:12 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT:  Nancy Bowren 

Mark Calice 
Michael Geise 

     Thomas Houghton, Chair 
     Martin Howrylak 

John M. Lamerato 
William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 

     Phillip L. Nelson 
 

MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2007 – 11 - 41 
Moved by Bowren  
Seconded by Lamerato 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the October 10, 2007 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – RETIREMENT REQUESTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2007 – 11 - 42 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the retirement request of Patricia R. Conflitti, DB, 1/10/08, 10 years; 
Edwin W. Klute Jr., DB, 1/21/08, 29 years, 1 month; Shelly Brown, DB (EDRO), 9/07/07 be 
approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
The September 30, 2007 Quarter Financial Report was received and filed. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – RETIREE NEWSLETTER 
 
The next edition of the Retiree Newsletter is in the works. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Draft November 14, 2007 
 
 

 2

INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2007 – 11 - 43 
Moved by Houghton 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board buy and sell the following investments: 
 
Buy: $500,000 Caterpillar, 5.125% due 11/15/14 
 $500,000 Wal Mart Stores, 4.125% due 2/15/11 
 $500,000 Clorox, 4.20% due 1/15/10 
 
Sell: Citadel Broadcasting; 7,000 shares JP Morgan; Radiation Therapy;  

CBL & Associates; Kayden; Kinetic Concepts; Linear Holdings and  
10,000 O Reilly Automotive. 

 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
The next meeting is December 12, 2007 at 1:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:05 p.m.  
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2007\11-14-07 Minutes_Draft.doc 



 

 
 
November 16, 2007 
 

TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

 

SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb 
Auctioneering Services – October 2007  

 

Background 
 

 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 
BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented the on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through 
the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement website used by the 
City for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a Purchasing 
goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 

 Resolution #2007-03-089-E4b established the auction fee of 5% for on-site and 6% for 
off-site auctions and provided approval to use Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services, LLC 
for vehicles – cleaned, detailed, and prepped.  Included in the specifications for the 
auction contract is the ability of our auctioneer to take the City’s auction items to other 
auction locations. Mid-Thumb Auctioneering, LLC suggested using the St. Clair County 
Park in Port Huron, Michigan.  All transportation, reporting, and advertising are included 
in the auction fee. Chuck Cryderman & Associates, LLC was also approved for heavy 
equipment etc at rates of 5% on-site and 10% off-site.  

 

Financial Considerations 
 

 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for one 
(1) stage, six (6) spring toys, two (2) chalk liners, one (1) park wire chair, one (1) crimp 
disc slicer, one (1) trailer tank sprayer, one (1) trailer, one (1) spreader/seeder, one (1) 
pick-up salter, one (1) leaf vac/mulcher, one (1) hitch mounted blower, one (1) Compaq 
server rack, one (1) beige file cabinet, and two (2) paperback spinner racks that were 
auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, on October 3, 2007 
and closed on, October 28, 2007.   

 

 Final reporting is also being presented for eight (8) Ford Crown Vics, two (2) Chevrolet 
Luminas, five (5) Dodge Ram Pick ups, one (1) GMC Cargovan, and one (1) Ford 
Explorer that were auctioned through Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services, LLC on 
October 20, 2007.    

1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



November 16, 2007 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb Auctioneering 

Services – October, 2007  
         
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS    SUB-TOTAL  NET INCOME 

(1) Stage, (6) Spring Toys, (1) Compaq Server Rack, & etc.            2,526.33               

 (8) Ford Vics, (5) Dodge Rams, (2) Chev Lumina, etc. 57,500.00   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:     $60,026.33  

 FEES:   

5% -Stage, Spring Toys, Compaq Server Rack, & etc. (126.33)   

6% on Vehicle (3,450.00)   

    
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:     ($3,576.33)  

Sales Tax +6% (Stage, Spring Toys, Server Rack, etc):* 118.79   

Sales Tax (None on Vehicle):  Tax Exempt.           0.00   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:         $118.79  

   * Note: Some items purchased – Vendors were tax exempt                                                      $ 56,568.79 

 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
 Troy, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for on and off site auctions.   

Resolution #2007-03-089-E4b. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the 

surplus auction process. (Goal II).  
 
Options 
 
 To report final results of October 2007 auctions to City management. 
 
 No action required 
 
 
 
 
G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line/Mid-Thumb Auctioneer – October 07  

2 of 2 



  VEHICLE AUCTION REPORT 

 NUMBER MAKE    MODEL   YEAR AUCTION FEE   AUCTION PRICE 
 072 FORD EXPLORER\4DR\4X4   99 $258.00 $4,300.00 
  

 213 DODGE RAM 1500 2WD   01 $108.00 $1,800.00 
  
 219 GMC SAVANA CARGOVAN   98 $210.00 $3,500.00 
  
 221 DODGE RAM 1500 2WD   01 $126.00 $2,100.00 
  
 230 DODGE RAM 1500 2WD   99 $189.00 $3,150.00 
  
 231 DODGE RAM 1500 2WD   99 $186.00 $3,100.00 
  
 804 DODGE RAM 1500 4WD   01 $330.00 $5,500.00 
  
 864 CHEVROLET LUMINA 4DR.   96 $156.00 $2,600.00 
  
 877 CHEVROLET LUMINA 4-DR   98 $180.00 $3,000.00 
  
 934 FORD CROWN VICTORIA   00 $171.00 $2,850.00 
  
 957 FORD CROWN VICTORIA   03 $210.00 $3,500.00 
  
 958 FORD CROWN VICTORIA   03 $222.00 $3,700.00 
  
 960 FORD CROWN VICTORIA   03 $231.00 $3,850.00 
  
 965 FORD CROWN VICTORIA   03 $222.00 $3,700.00 
   
 967 FORD CROWN VICTORIA   03 $225.00 $3,750.00 
  
 968 FORD CROWN VICTORIA   03 $216.00 $3,600.00 
  
 975 FORD CROWN VICTORIA   03 $210.00 $3,500.00 
  

 TOTALS $3,450.00 $57,500.00 

Vehicles listed above were sold by Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Service on 10/20/2007. 

FINANCE: PLEASE CREDIT ACCOUNT # 6610.4693.100 GAIN/SALE OF DEPRECIATED FIXED 
ASSETS. 
 

     TOTAL SALE: $57,500.00      

    AUCTION FEE (6%) $- 3,450.00 

       $54,050.00                                            

        

Prepared by: Samuel P. Lamerato, CPFP - Superintendent of Fleet  

 Thursday, November 01, 2007 Page 1 of 1 



Report for the City of Troy, MI

Detailed Report for Seller: Linda Bockstanz INVOICE #IN00000228

Reported on From: 10/1/2007  To: 10/31/2007

Item ID Date Sale Amount Tax Collected Charge Type of Fee Auction Description Seller

2506 10/14/2007  $            610.00  $              36.60  $              30.50 Sale Stage Bockstanz  

2535 10/21/2007  $              81.00  $                    -    $                4.05 Sale Spring Toys Lot 1 Bockstanz  

2536 10/21/2007  $              81.00  $                4.86  $                4.05 Sale Spring Toys Lot 2 Bockstanz  

2537 10/21/2007  $              89.00  $                4.45  $                4.45 Sale Spring Toys Lot 3 Bockstanz  

2551 10/21/2007  $            355.00  $              21.30  $              17.75 Sale Crimp Disc Slicer Bockstanz  

2531 10/21/2007  $            157.50  $                9.45  $                7.88 Sale Chain Saw Sharpener Bockstanz  

2533 10/21/2007  $              30.50  $                    -    $                1.53 Sale Two Chalk Liners Bockstanz  

2534 10/21/2007  $              71.00  $                    -    $                3.55 Sale Park Wire Chairs Bockstanz  

2548 10/21/2007  $              77.51  $                4.65  $                3.88 Sale Trailer Tank Sprayer Bockstanz  

2549 10/21/2007  $              52.00  $                3.12  $                2.60 Sale Otter Trailer Bockstanz  

2552 10/21/2007  $              51.00  $                3.06  $                2.55 Sale Spreader / Seeder Bockstanz  

2532 10/21/2007  $            112.09  $                6.73  $                5.60 Sale Pick-up Salter Bockstanz  

2530 10/21/2007  $              20.50  $                1.23  $                1.03 Sale Chain Saws Bockstanz  

2550 10/21/2007  $            334.00  $              20.04  $              16.70 Sale Leaf Vac / Mulcher Bockstanz  

2547 10/21/2007  $            313.23  $                    -    $              15.66 Sale Hitch Mounted Blower Bockstanz  

2574 10/28/2007  $                5.00  $                0.30  $                0.25 Sale BIG BOOK Back Rest Mat Bockstanz  

2575 10/28/2007  $              20.00  $                1.20  $                1.00 Sale One Paperback Spinner Rack Bockstanz  

2576 10/28/2007  $              20.00  $                1.20  $                1.00 Sale One Paperback Spinner Rack Bockstanz  

2566 10/28/2007  $              36.00  $                    -    $                1.80 Sale Compaq Rack Bockstanz  

2578 10/28/2007  $              10.00  $                0.60  $                0.50 Sale Beige File Cabinet Bockstanz  

$ - Tax Exmpt. 2,526.33$     118.79$        126.33$        

Total Sales 

Amount

Total Tax 

Collected

Total Amount 

Charged
Total Payments

Total Balance Due for the 

selected date range

Total Balance 

Due
$2,526.33 $118.79 $126.33 $0.00 $126.33 ($445.80)

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2007&endmonth=10&endyear=2007&sortby=id
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2007&endmonth=10&endyear=2007&sortby=Date
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2007&endmonth=10&endyear=2007&sortby=Type
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2007&endmonth=10&endyear=2007&sortby=Seller
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2506
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2535
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2536
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2537
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2551
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2531
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2533
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2534
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2548
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2549
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2552
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2532
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2530
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2550
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2547
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2574
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2575
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2576
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2566
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2578


campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 3, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 

J-4 No Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from 
Other Organizations  

campbellld
Text Box
J-04



campbellld
Text Box
J-05



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 3, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 3, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
L-01


	AGENDA: December 3, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	On behalf of the City of Troy Employee’s Casual for a Cause Program, Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director will present a check to Maureen Lobowski of Troy People Concerned
	Citizens Academy Class X – Mayor Schilling will present the Certificates of Completion to the Graduates
	On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling will present a Proclamation to Bud and Shirley Black recognizing the occasion of their 50th Wedding Anniversary
	100 Best Fleets in North America (City of Troy’s Fleet Division Named #2) – Mayor Schilling will present the award to Tim Richnak, Sam Lamerato and Fleet Division


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 No Public Hearings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Proposed Council Appointment to the Cable Advisory Committee
	D-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File No: ZOTA 214) – Article X, Group Child Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Charter Revision Committee; Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & Retiree...
	E-2 Bid Waiver – Contract Extension – Alarm Installation, Monitoring and Maintenance
	E-3 Sole Source – Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center
	E-4 Proposed Reconsideration of Resolution #2007-09-278 (Item F-3) – Bid Waiver – Replacement of Two Police Canines
	E-5 Contract Award:  Qualification Based Selection (QBS) – Integrated Financial System

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	a) Bud and Shirley Black – 50th Wedding Anniversary

	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles

	F-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #17 – Sidwell #88-20-11-226-036 – 19 John R Company
	F-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #11 – Sidwell #88-20-11-226-007 – Wattles Square, Inc.
	F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #12 – Sidwell #88-20-11-226-006 – Garrett Family Limited Partnership
	F-8 Private Agreement for 1-800-Mini-Storage – Project No. 07.927.3
	F-9 Application for New SDM License for Wal-Mart
	F-10 Application for Transfer of B-Hotel License to Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc. and RBHV Troy, LLC (Co-Licensees)
	F-11 Private Agreement for Rochester Professional Building – Project No. 06.935.3
	F-12 Request for Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Parcel to Tepel Land LLC, Section 26 – Sidwell #88-20-26-477-042
	F-13 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – 1660 East Square Lake Road – Sidwell #88-20-11-201-022 – Kensington Community Church
	F-14 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Deficit Elimination Plan
	F-15 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Big Beaver and Cunningham
	F-16 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Rochester Road and Woodside Bible Church
	F-17  Steamers Café Contract

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Rezoning Application – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy Development, North Side of Long Lake, East Side of Rochester Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 (File Number Z-729) – December 17, 2007

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 17, 2007
	Downtown Development Authority/Draft – September 19, 2007
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 10, 2007
	Library Advisory Board/Final – October 11, 2007
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 16, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 23, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 7, 2007
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 12, 2007
	Planning Commission/Draft – November 13, 2007
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 14, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Purchasing Department – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services – October 2007

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Jim and Susan Werpetinski Regarding the Police Presence on Election Day and the Community Outreach Programs

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	J-5  Calendar

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



